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The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the 

charitable company for the period I st September 2015 to 31 August 2016. The annual report serves  the 

purposes of both a trustees' report and a directors' report under company law. 

 
Northern Education Trust 
Northern Education Trust (NET) was formed in 2012. (n four years it has grown from a single academy to 

ten primary academies and ten secondary academies which are located in three hub areas: 

1. North East England conurbations ofTyne-Wear and Tees Valleys 

2. Yorkshire conurbations of the Aire-Calder-Dearne Valleys 

3. Bolton -Manchester conurbation 

 
Northern Education Trust aim to transform young people's lives through excellent learning experiences 

leading to outstandjng outcomes that ensure they can fulfil their potential. The Trust 's core values are 

drawn from our trustees' belief that the welfare of others is the first concern of all and that the education of 

every child is held to be of equal value. 

 
NET are passionate about the role of schools in their communities and in being at the heart of leammg. 

Trustees are committed to working with local authorities, other agencies and industry and want our 

academies to be amongst the best nationally and internationally, so that our pupils and students can have 

the opportunity to be economically self-reliant and have the ability to choose  their  own  pathways  to 

success. 

 
STRUCTURE,GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 

 
ETHOS, VISION and PURPOSE 

 
Constitution 

 
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's 

memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing docwnents of the Academy Trust. The 

trustees of Northern Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of 

company law. The charitable company is known  as Northern  Education Trust. 

 
Details of the trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details 

on page 1. 

 
Public Benefit 

 
The Trustees conftrm that they have referred to the guidance contained  in the Charity Commissions 

general guidance on public benefit wen reviewing the charitable company's objectives and aims and in 
planning future activities for the year. The Trustees consider that the charitable company's aims are 

demonstrably to the public benefit. 

 
Members' Liability 

 
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in 

the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a 

member, such amount as may be required, not exceed.ing £I 0, for the debts and liabilities contracted before 

they ceased to be a member. 
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Trustees' Indemnities 

 
Subject to the provision of the Companies Act 2006, every Trustee and Officer is indemnified against any 
liability incurred by them in their capacity in  defending  any proceedings  whether  civil  or criminal, in 
which judgement is given in favour or in which they are acquitted or in connection with any application in 

which relief is granted to them by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach 

of trust in relation to the affairs of Northern Education Trust The insurance purchased  for the  Trust 

provides cover up to £5 million on an annual aggregate limit basis. 

 
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees 

 
The types of Trustees and their recruitment, term and appointment is set out within the Articles of 

Association and Scheme of Delegation . The Members of the Trust shall comprise of; 

 
1. L H Walton; 

2. C Roberts; 
3. J B Oglethorpe; 

4. the Chair of the Trustees; and 

5. any person appointed under Article  16. 

 
The Members may appoint up to eleven Trustees through such process as they may determine. The total 

number of Trustees including the ChiefBxecutive Officer who are employees of the Trust shall not exceed 

one third of the total number ofTrustees. 

 
Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees 

 
The training and induction provided for new Trustees depends  on their existing skills, knowledge and 

experience. Where necessary, induction will provide  training  on  charity, educational,  governance,  HR, 

legal and fmancial matters. All new Trustees will be offered a tour of the Trust's academies and the chance 

to meet students, staff and Local Governors. All Trustees are provided with a Trust induction and copies of 

policies, procedures, latest minutes, financial statements and other documents  they require to undertake 

their role effectively as Trustees. 

 
Organisational Structure 

 
The governance  structure of the Trust is on two levels: the Trust Board  then its subcommittees and 

individual Academy Local Governing Bodies and regional hubs. The Trust Board is responsible for the 

strategic decision making of the Trust. The Trust Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that high 

standards of corporate governance are maintained. It exercises its powers and functions by addressing such 

matters as policy and strategy development, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the Trust by 

the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the Trust and senior staff 

appointments. 

 
The Trust Board's responsibilities are: 

 
I . To  provide  strategic  direction  for  the  Trust  including   the  addition  of  further  new 

Academies. 
2. To provide strategic vision and support for school improvement across the Trust. 

3. To monitor the effectiveness of the Trusts support arrangements and to ensure that the 

Academies are satisfied with the support and that they are getting value for money. 
4. To appoint and performance manage Academy Principals, Local Governing Bodies and 

Interim Executive Boards . 

5. To ensure  financial  accountability  to the Departmen t for Education  and  within  the 

Academies is secure. 
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At the Academy level, there are Local Governing Bodies, regional hubs and in exceptional circumstances 

Interim Executive Boards. The main roles and responsibi lities are: 

 
1. Help  set  high  standards  by  planning   for  the  future  and  setting   targets  for  school 

improvement. 

2. Maintain and further develop school improvement. 

3. Support the Principal to respond to the needs of parents and the community. 

4. Support and engage with the local community. 

5. Not intervene in the day-to-day management  of the school unless there are weaknesses in 

the school, when it then has a duty to take action. 

 
Arrangemen ts for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 

 
The Trust has determined its key management personnel as the members of the Trust Leadership Team led 

by its Chief Executive. The Trust Leadership Team have authority and responsibility for (directly or 

indirectly) planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Trust. The members of this Team are 

shown below; 

 

I. !Kershaw 

2. !Hickman 

3. H Clegg 

4. J Telford 

5. DBrown 

6. G Edmunds 

7. 1 Lane 

Chief Executive and Accounting Officer 

Chief Operating Officer 

Director of Primary Academies 

HR Director 

Director of Governance, Standards and Safeguarding 

Director of Finance 

Director of Secondary Academies 

 

Remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the Trusts Corporate Coordination & 
Scrutiny Committee (CCS). CCS co-ordinates the Trusts Achievement and Climate Committee and the 

Audit and Risk Committee on items of strategic importance which overlap in order that an aligned view is 

taken prior to final consideration and sign off by the Board. Trustees may delegate matters in relation to 

the remuneration of Trustees and Officers to the Chief Executive. 

 
Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations 

 
NET was formed in June 2012 and sponsored by Northern Education Associates (NEA). NEA is a 

successful school improvement company and a completely separate legal entity. The Trust is responsible 

and accountable for the performance of its academies and has a funding agreement with the Education 

Funding Agency with further supplemental funding agreements for each Academy it then sponsors. With 

effect from the 31sl August 2014 there have been no related party transactions between NET and NEA. 

 
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 

 
Purpose 

Our values seek to ensure that each Academy provides learning experiences enabling every individual to 

begin to look at learning as a life-long activity,pursued within a community which proclaims that: 

 
The welfare of others is thefirst concern of all 

 
Such a guiding principle requires all those skills and attitudes that encompass such words as tolerance, 

flexibility, sensitivity, compassion and respect. Trustees would wish to endorse the strength of each of 

these words and to expect that each of them be associated with the single most important principle of a 

comprehensive education. That is: 

 
The education of every child is held to be of equal value in the comprehensive community school. 
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This principle applied to practice, needs more  precise thought, determined implementation and constant 

monitoring than systems pretending greater simplicity. It must overarch decisions,  guide planning  and 

inform the style of relationships in each Academy. It is through the discovery of organisational and human 

relation ships which reflect this principle, that expectations can be raised. 

 
lt does not mean that everyone is equal in talent, social behaviour or opportunities . Rather it recognises 

individual differences and starting points, accepts proficiencies and deficiencies and notwithstanding these 

accepts the essential  value and rights of the individual. 

 
We believe that the progress of pupils and students in  their academic,  social and physical development 

should be our prime focus, no matter their starting points.  We believe that the Trust's success should be 

measured against students' achievements and their progression to futther education or training, higher 
education and to economic security and success in the world of work. 

 
The principles of the welfare of others and of equal value must govern all decisions concerning pastoral 

and academic organisation and practices. It should also inform the style of relationships between staff and 

students and between Academy and the community served. 

 
In order to achieve this, we believe that investment in the development, welfare and care of our staff must 

be at the heart of our employment policies. 
 

There is a single overarching rule that the Trust expects to be promoted and upheld in the Trust and its 

Academies: 

 
"Every student and adult is expected to behave in a responsible manner, both to themselves and others, 

showing consideration courtesy and respect for other people at all times " 

 
Objectives, Strategies and Activities 
So that the Trust can fulfil our ambition for every child and our commitment to placing children at the 

heart of everything we do, we have seven strategic aims within the medium term Business Plan which 

govern our day-to-day operations. The seven strategic aims are; 

 
I   Academy  outcomes  and effectiveness 

Our aim is to continuously improve pupils' and students' progress from their starting points to above the 

national average, and substantially above the regional average, in order that they can utilise their academic 

achievement to reach their potential and confidently build their future careers and lives. By 2018 a 

summary or our expected key performance indicators against targets will look like this: 
l. 100% of our primary and secondary academies  will be rated overall Good or Outstanding 

by Ofsted standards 

2. 100% of our primary and secondary academies will be above Floor Standards 

3. I 00% of our primary academies will be above national  expectations  for progress in 

writing and maths 

4. 100% of our secondary academy students will make above average national expectations 

progress for their group 

5. 100%  of our primary  academies  with  disadvantaged  pupils  will  make  above national 

average expected progress for their group in reading, writing and maths 

6. 95% of our secondary Year 11 EET is above average 

7. I 00% of our academies will be places where safeguarding is judged to be effective 
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2 Academy leadership and corporate governance 

Our aim is to ensure that our Trustees', academy leaders' and governors ' prime focus is upon delivering 

high quality educational experiences and outstanding outcomes for pupils and students. By 2018 a 

summary of our expected key performance indicators against targets will look like this: 

l. 100% of our primary and secondary academies will operate with portfolio functioning 

governing bodies 

2. 100% of our primary and secondary academies' governance and leadership will be Good 

or Outstanding by Ofsted standards 

3. 100% of our secondary  faculty leaders and primary  phase  leaders will be Good or 

Outstanding by Ofsted standards 

 
3 Teaching. assessment and learning 

Our aim is to promote and develop a high quality, teaching, assessment and learning culture in each 

academy in order to ensure all pupils and students make substantial and sustained progress. 

 
4 Personal development, behaviour and welfare 

Our aim is to keep children safe and promote in young people open, harmonious and trusting relationships 

that enable them to express their feelings and opinions. Typically, pupils would }jsten well to each other in 

lessons, ask thoughtful questions of their teachers and each other and use sound evidence to justify their 

views. By 2018 a summary of our expected key performance indicators against targets will look like this: 

1. 100% of our primary and secondary academies will benefit from Good or Outstanding 

teaching 

2. t 00% of our primary and secondary academies' attendance will be above the national 

average 

3. 100% of our primary and secondary academies will have persistent absence below the 

national average 

4. More than 90% of our parents will have confidence in their child's academy to deliver the 

best education for them 

5. More than 95% of students will be proud of their academy and will recommend it to other 

students 

6. 100% of our safeguarding arrangements will be secure in each academy 

 
5 People and stakeholders 

Our aim is to develop a highly skilled, innovative and flexible workforce, to retain people of talent and 

integrity who are committed to working together and to supporting the values and principles of the Trust; 

ensuring that we build strong, supportive relationships with our partners and stakeholders. By 20 18 a 

summary of our expected key perfonnance  indicators against targets will look like this: 

1. 98% of the attendance level for teachers will be at or above the national average 

2. 90% of parents would recommend Northern Education Trust academies to others 

3. I 00% of achievement partners will be accredited as improvement experts 

4. 70% of principals will be accredited as expert improvement leaders 

5. 70% of middle leaders will be accredited as improvement leaders 

6. 80% of chairs of governors will be accredited as expert improvement leaders 

 
6 Finance and value for money 

Our aim is to ensure we achieve high value-for-money provision and services for pupils and students inour 

academies; where the quality of the environment for pupils, students and staff is fit-for-purpose in the first 

halfofthe  21st  century. 

 
7 Systems and organisational effectiveness 

Our aim is to develop and create systems to ensure effective and efficient decision-making and 

accountability, alongside the accurate measurement of progress toward the Trust's strategic objectives and 

targets. By 2018 a summary of our expected key performance indicators against targets will look like this : 

1.  100% of our statutory policies will be in place 

2.  100% of our levels of compliance will be recorded in our HALO health and safety system 
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Academy Admissions 

The individual academy Admissions Policy are largely taken from the Local Authority in which they 

operate with the The Governing Body then being responsible for all admissions to the  academy.  In 

summary the last majority of policies operated are based upon; 

I. The general guide lines of the Local Authority and takes in to account the statutory duties and 

recommendations contained within the School Admissions  Code. 

2. The academy will accept children of all abilities. This means no child is offered a place or refused 

a place on the basis of his or her general ability. The academy recognises that all children, 

including those resident outside the Borough, have an equal right to apply for a place. 

3. The academy will admit a pupil into any year group throughout the  academic year if parents 

request a transfer which is agreed to by the Local Education Authority after consultation with the 

academy. 

4. The typical Local Authority policies are that children with special educational needs will, 

wherever possible, be educated in mainstream schools. If, after review, the academy considers this 

is not possible after the full allocation of available resources, then the academy will liaise with 

officers of the Local Authority and parents to consider other alternatives 

5. In the event of the Academy being oversubscribed , the remaining places will be prioritised based 

upon an agreed priority criterion which has been agreed by the Governing Body. For example; 

a. Priority  I: looked after children and previously looked after children 

b. Priority 2: children who have older brothers or/and sisters who will be attending the 

Academy 

c. Priority 3: identified Partner Primary Schools 

d. Priority 4: children who are distinguished from the great majority of other applicants, 

whether on medical grounds or by other exceptional circumstances, and who would suffer 

significant hardship if they were unable to attend the Academy. 

e. Priority 5: children who live closest to the academy as determined by a 'straight line' 

distance measurement;  from the (ordnance survey) address point  for the child's home 
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STRATEGIC REPORT 

 

Achievements and Performance 
 

Overall Summary 
Many academies are in areas with double the national average level of disadvantaged pupils. According to 

the School Deprivation Indicator used by OfSTED, of the ten primary academies, nine have deprivation 

scores in the fifth (most deprived) quintile based on the Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index. 

(fDACI).  The  tenth,  with  a  score of  0.33  is just  0. 1  below  the  fifth  quintile.  Of  the  ten  secondary 

academies, five are fifth quintile, three are fourth quintile (with two just below the fifth quintile threshold) 

and two are quintile three. 

 
OfSTED reports have continually shown improvements and recognised the contribution of NET. No 

academies are in special measures. However , KS2 and KS4 results in some academies are at a level that 
neither NET nor the DtE would ex:pecl This is particularly so in five academies (two primary and three 
secondary). 

 
Trustees have been financially prudent to achieve the level of reserves realised despite the pressures of 

falling pupil numbers especially in secondary academies. Additional financial support from the DtE, EFA 

and RSC has been unsuccessful to date and in August this year Trustees agreed we will temporarily depart 

from our reserves policy and invest approximately £1.7 million in largely clustered school improvement 

focused activity in 2016/17. A small investment will also be made from our reserves to improve our ICT 

and communications  systems. 

 
To be able to sustain this initial investment in the longer term Trustees have agreed that some of our 

internal policies will change in order that the depleted reserves level in 16/17 will be replenished over the 

medium term. To achieve this, we will be increasing each academy's top slice from September 2017. We 

are also introducing a phased increase in the teacher contact time in secondaries and in primaries and will 

be reducing the support staff costs by 10% by September 2017. 

 
The table below summarises the individual academies and their students, highlighting the challenges faced 

from the above national average with regard to deprivation and special educational needs; 
 

 
Primllry Academies Number 

on Roll 
Girls" Boys% FSM" School 

deprivation 
BME" EAL" SEN SEN 

S41pport" Statement' 
Stability% 

     indlc:;otor   Of EHC"  

 
Abbey Pari< 

 
214   

SO'l' 
 

48" 
 

0.33 
 

9% 
 

3% 13" 
 

1% 
 

BS% 
Frederick Nanrass 241 47% 54% 63" 0.38 6% 6"  '"' 81" 

Hilton 430 51" SO% 70% 0.44 17% 15% 16"  82% 

Merl n Top 365 46" 54% 68% 0.42 33% 20% 17% 2% 80" 

Mount Pelion 573 52% 48% 39% 0.41 98% 80% 15% 1% 91% 

Norton 423 49% 51% 49% 0.34 5% 3" 21% 1% 85% 

Ryecroft 291 46% 54% 66% 0.57 27% 19% 28% 1% 72% 

Southmere 389 SO'l' SO% 48" 0.4 85% 63" 19'1'  97% 
 

The Ferns 370 48% 
 

52" 56" 0.37 33% 29% 10% l" 
 

84" 
The Oak Tree 412 49% 51" 68" o.ss 8" 2% 17% 2" 89% 

 

Trllst Aver81Je !70.8 ."' 51% 57% o..u 32% ZA" ZO% 

'" 
85% 

           Na1ional 269 ·"' 51" z"' O.N 31" lO% 13" 1" "" 
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Seondary Academies Number 

on Roll 
Girls" Boys" FSM" School 

deprivation 
BME'l(. EAL " SEN SEN 

Support" Statement 
Stability" 

     lndleetor   orEHC"  

 
Blyth 

 
838 

 
49" 

 
51% 

 

S4'lt. 
 

0.33 1" 
 

1" 
 

42'lt. 2" 
 

95% 

Dyke House 1155 52" 48% 51% 0.38 3% 2% 4" 1% 94% 

Grangefield 740 46" 54" 48% 0.37 20% 11" 20% 1% 97'lt. 

Kearsley 494 46" 54" 4'»' 0.27 9% S'lt. 15" 3% 83" 
Klrk Balk 1011 SO% SO% 34% 0.22 3" 1% 13" 3" 95" 

 

Manor 
 

1140 
 

47" 
 

53% 44" 
 

0.32 
 

1% 1" 
 

18" 
 

3" 
 

98% 

North Shore 546 51% SO% 67% 0.39 6% 4% 19% 1% 81% 

Red House 543 50% 50% 62% 0.42 1% 1% 34% 1% 96'16 

Thomas Hepburn S57 50% SO% 66'l(. 0.45 6% 4% 7% 2% 97'lt. 

Thorp 1.223 SO% 50% 31" 0.19 3% 1% 11" 2% 9'»' 
 
 
TI'IISt Avet111e 

 
130.7 

 
4"' 

 
51" 

 
SO'lt. 

 
0.33 

 
5" 

 
3" 

 
18% 

 
2% 

 
93" 

National 945 SO'lt. SO'lt. 19% on ll'lt. 15"  2% 92% 
  

Kirkland Rowell Attitudinal Surveys 

The following table shows the results from the Kirkland Rowell surveys undertaken in  the winter  of 

2015/16 at all 20 NET academies. Pupils, parents and staff were surveyed on a consistent basis using an 

independent company (GL Assessment). This allowed us not only to compare results between academies 

but also against a national database of similar schools. As a baseline set of results we are very pleased with 

the positive results, especially against the national benchmarks. We are doing a limited follow up survey in 
early 2017 and will resurvey all our academies in 2018 to see progress against the baseline. 

 

 

 Parent 
Primary 

Parent 
Sec'dary 

Pupil 
Primary 

Pupil 
Sec'dary 

Staff 
Primary 

Staff 
Sec'dary 

Overall Performance 77% 70% n/a 64% 74% 67% 
NET Improvement Score 53% 33% n/a 31% 60% 36% 
Iwould recommend this school 82% 77% n/a 67% 89% 83% 
Better than Iexpected 31% 25% n/a nla nla n/a 

 

 

 
 

Primary Academies 

 
ln general, pupil numbers have risen slowly since conversion, except for Mount Pelion where the roll has 

fallen. There are very high levels of disadvantaged pupils with the Trust average being 45% but in some 

academies, such as Hilton, it is 62%. Data for the 2016 end of Key Stage 2 cohort shows 64% of pupils 

were disadvantaged, ranging from 97% at Ryecroft to 43% at Mount Pelion. The 20 15 national average is 

25%. 

 
Absence  rates  are about   I   percentage  point  higher  than  the national  averages, with  persistent  absence  (PA) 

rates substantially higher than national (although academy PA figures may be influenced by conversion 



Page 1J 

Northern Education Trust 
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) 

 

 

 

dates prior to 2015/16). Appendix 2 shows the data for all primary and secondary academies now in the 

Trust. 

 
Key stage 2 outcomes in relation to expected standard in reading, writing and maths results in 2016 were 

largely very disappointing and the Director of Primary is investigating the reasons for this to best prevent a 

repeat in future years. However, results at The Ferns were outstanding, with 76% of pupils achieving at 

least the expected standard in reading, writing and maths. Reading, writing and maths progress measures 

were significantly above national average and comfortably in the top 5th percentile nationally. The 

threshold result at Norton was also above national average. Their writing progress was significantly higher 

than national average and reading and rnatbs progress broadly in line. 

 

The Director of Primary Academies bas undertaken an analysis of the work of each primary academy in 

teaching reading and developing reading skills. Drawing upon the very high success of The Ferns, every 

primary academy is  strengthening its work in this vitally important area, with particular attention to 

developing reading skills across all aspects of the curriculum. 

 
2016 threshold results were particularly disappointing , as in 2014 and 2015 the Trust average  for the 

former threshold measure (Level4+ in reading, writing and maths) increased by 4 and 5 percentage points 

respectively closing the gap to the national average. The academies that NET had been responsible for the 

longest (Ryecroft and the Ferns) had increased from 26% in 2012 to 69% in 2015 and 54% to 88% 

respectively. More positively, and perhaps a fairer measure of NET primary academy performance, given 

the high proportion of low and average prior attainers, was progress results in writing and maths. 

Provisionally, five academies' writing progress was significantly above the national average and a further 

four were close to it. In maths, one was significantly above national average and seven were close to it. 

 
In the Early Years Foundation Stage, the percentage of NET pupils achieving a good level of development 

improved by eight percentage points to 60%. The percentage of Year I NET pupils achieving the Phonics 

standard improved by nine percentage points to 72% and the percentage achieving the expected Phonics 

standard by Year 2 improved by four percentage points to 85%. While these figures remain below national 

averages, the gaps have narrowed substantially. 

 
There is evidence of positive impact on disadvantaged gaps across the NET primary academies. Using the 

National 'Other Pupils' benchmark, the 2015 Trust average gap  in reading progress narrowed by 4.5 

percentage points. In writing, the progress measure was 1.7 percentage points above the benchmark , 

improved  from  a gap  of 4.4 percentage  points  in 2014. The gap in  maths narrowed  by  1.3 percentage 

points to 4.8,having been 10.4 percentage points in 2012. 

 
At Key Stage I,the percentage of pupils working at the expected standard for each of reading, writing and 

maths was below national averages. However, according to Fischer Family Trust (FFT) data, the pupils 

across NET primary academies made significantly more progress from EYFSP than the national average. 

Of'STED grades  and reports  received  in recent  years  have been  very encouraging and demonstrate 

progress. Eight NET primary academies have been inspected since conversion, with six improving and two 

maintaining  their  overall  effectiveness  grades.  Beyond  this  the  reports  have  outlined  the  positive 

contribution of the Trust to that improvement. 

 
Secondary Academies 

 
Of our ten secondary academies, only two have four years' results. One has three years ' results, five have 

results for two years and two have results for 2016 only. Therefore, for seven of the ten, we do not yet 

have three years of trend data . 

A striking factor of the secondary academies is reducing pupil numbers. There are now 436 pupils fewer in 

the ten academies than there were in 2009 but this masks big variations. For example; 

North Shore shows a pattern ofmajor reduction from  1031 in 2009 down to 497 in 2014 

but the slump bas been arrested and the numbers in 2016 are back up to 644. 
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• Orangefield and Thorp have both reduced significantly (612 and  696  respectively) 
between 2009 and 2016. Each of these two now receive around £3 million less in income 
per annum than they did previou sly. 

As a result of the reducing pupil numbers, we have had to reduce significantly secondary 

staffing levels. We have reduced by 67 teachers ( t3 at Orangefield, 11 at Thorp and 11 at 

North Shore) and 88 support staff (18 at Orangefield, 17 at North Shore,  15 at Thorp and 

14 at Blyth and Kearsley). This has cost approximately £1.78 million in restructuring 

payments. 
 

The Trust and its principals in the secondary academies are focused upon the management of high quality 

relationships with parents and feeder primary schools. This is beginning to impact with evidence of rising 

confidence amongst parents in Orangefield, North Shore, Thorp, Kearsley and Blyth  Academies. 

 
There are very high and increasing levels of disadvantage (45% in 2015). For example, the NET average in 

2012 was 42%. In North Shore, Thomas Hepburn and Red House over 60% of pupils are disadvantaged 

which is more than 2112 times the national average. Absence and persjstent absence rates are also high at 

6.1% and 6% on average. This again masks very high figures in some academies i.e. Thomas Hepburn 

9.1% persistent absence in 20 I5, and the proportion of high attainers on entry to secondary  school  is 

around a third lower than the national average. 
 

The key headline indicator at KS4 historically bas been 5 or more A*-C OCSEs or equivalent including 

English and Maths. Our 2016 results at North Shore (25%), Kearsley (26%) and Thomas Hepburn (28%) 

were very disappointing. The key issue at each bei ng the teaching of Maths that has meant the recent 

years' gains at Kearsley and North Shore have been lost. However, there was marked progress at Blyth and 

Red House where results increased by 11% up to 38% and 37%. Three academies Orangefield, Kirk Balk 

and Thorp had their best results of the last eight years. 

 
Provisional Progress 8 results for 2016 were mixed, with the Trust average falling by 0.06 compared to 

2015. Only one academy had a positive score, but five improved substantially. Results at Kearsley, Manor, 

North Shore and Thomas Hepburn were disappointing, with all four likely to be below floor standard.Red 

House results show encouraging progress from a very low baseline, although they are also likely to be 

below floor. 

 
The provisional Basics result was 47%, comprising of 63% for English and 53% for Matbs. Attainment 8 

results improved slightly to an average of 45. The percentage of pupiJs entered for all English 

Baccalaureate components remained unchanged at 32%, but the percentage achieving all components fell 

by around three percentage points to 12%. 

 
The Trust has overseen a positive impact on disadvantaged gaps to the National 'Other Pupil s' benchmark 

across NET secondary academies, although some gaps remain sizeable. Between 2012 and 2015, the 

disadvantaged gap in attainment of 5+A*-C grades at GCSE or equivalent including English and Maths 

narrowed by 7.5 percentage points. In maths over the same period, the expected progress gap narrowed by 

just 0.9 percentage points, whicb is reflective of broader issues with maths across the Trust. However, the 

expected progress gap in English narrowed by almost 21 percentage points from 39.4 to 18.7. At North 

Shore, the English progress disadvantaged gap narrowed by 43 percentage points and at Dyke House and 

Orangefield the gaps narrowed by 37 and35 points respectively. 

 
Across the Trust, there were two key areas for improvement: 

Maths attainment and progress. A*-C grades have remained stubbornly around 57% over 

time but fell to 53% in 2016 and provisional Progress 8 scores show maths progress is 

lowest of any slot. This contrasts significantly with English, where there has been an A*­ 

C improvement of around 17 percentage points since 2012 

English Baccalaureate slot achievement. NET academies have not improved in line with 

national, particularly for low and mid prior attainers. 
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Experienced HMl or OfSTED Inspectors have conducted full reviews of every maths department and we 

are currently analysing this work. Every academy is designing an improvement plan to address the issues 

identified and areas needing to be strengthened. 

 
We have introduced the concept of Trust-wide Subject Directors, who will be senior staff with a proven 

track record of strong performance in their specialist fields. They will take responsibility for subject 
leadership and development across all secondary academies through programs  of  targeted  activity 
comm issioned by the Director of Secondary Academies. We have successfully recruited two experienced 

Heads ofMaths, one Head ofEng1ish and one Head of History so far, all from highly successful schools 
and due to join us in Jw1uary 2017. At academy level, and despite a challenging climate for recruiting 

mafus specialists, we have recruited successfully for high quality maths curriculum leaders in five 

secondaries since JaJluary, with a sixth placed in Thomas Hepburn on loan from the Trust. 

Four NET secondary academies have sixth fonns: The Blyth Academy, Dyke House, Kearsley aJld Thorp 

Academy. The change in accountability framework means there is no comparative data for new 

methodology measures. However, provisional results were Largely in line with expectations. Academic 

points per entry was around two thirds of a grade lower than the 2015 national average and total points 

were well below national, reflecting smaller courses of study commensurate with levels of attainment at 

Key Stage 4 for many students. Vocational points per entry were in line with the 2015 national average and 

the points per student was well above. 

 
Seven of NET's ten secondary academies were judged inadequate by OfSTED prior to conversion. Since 

conversion, Dyke House was judged good having previously been judged outstanding but there have been 

five inspections with four judgments improving. 

 
Academy Profiles and Inspections 

 
The Blyth Academy 

The Blyth Academy converted to a Northern Education Trust  sponsored  academy on  1st October 2013. 

The Academy is developing a strong learning culture with a range of teaching aJld learning styles to meet 

the needs of all students. There are  opportunities through the design of the new buildings, to  model 

excellent teaching and learning and show how students can be actively involved in their own learning. 

 
OfSTED May and November 2015 Reports 

"The links with external pa rtners are having a positive effect on senior staff and teachers in the academy. 

Senior leaders, the Academy Trust and governors are ambitious and have a firm focus  on the academy 's 

improvement  priorities.   in  order  to  secure   improvements   at  a  faster   pace.   As   a  result,  past 

underperformance and underachievement are beingfirmly tackled in the drive to provide a good education 

for all students. Since the academy conversion, they have restructured the whole staff to ensure financial 

viability and sustainability and have strengthened senior leadership when required ". 

 
Dyke House Sports & Technology College 

Dyke House Sports and Technology College converted to an academy under sponsorship from the 

Northern Education Trust on 1st April 2013. The latest OfSTED report describes Dyke House as "an 

outstanding school" stating that "there are many reasons why the school is successful, the most significant 

of which are the exceptional leadership, frrst rate teaching and learning and excellent care, guidance and 

support." 

 
OfSTED October 2015 Reports 

"Senior leaders, governors. staff and students share a common visionfor the academy to be as successful 

as possible. Senior leaders have developed positive partnerships with other schools. both within and 

outside of the Northern Education Trust. There is rigour in the way in which the governing body links with 

officers from the Northern Educatio n Trust. Regular visits .from the trust's achievement partner provides 

the academy with appropriate challenge and support". 
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The Orangefield Academy 

The Orangefield Academy converted to a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy on 1st January 

2014.The Orangefield Academy are on a journey of significant improvement over the next few years and 

are developing a new focus on sport and the arts building on the significant strength of teachers in these 

areas. The new building has been designed to place these at the heart of all that they do for their students 

and for their community. 
 

K. earsley Academy 

The Academy opened on its previous site in September 20 10 and after a complete rebuild in 2012 with a 

state of the art, ICT-rich, flexible learning environment. The Academy's excellent facilities are also 

available to the local community. The Academy has specialisms in Math s, Computing and Leadership, 

providing education of the highest quality. There is also a strong focus on raising attainment in English. In 

terms of academic standards, the first new Year 11 results were extremely pleasing with a stunning 52% of 

students achieving the government's benchmark of 5+ A*-C GCSE passes (including English and Maths) 

compared with 32% in the last year of the predecessor school. 

 
OfSTED May 2015 Reports 

"The Northem Education  Trost provides effective support to the academy. The trust closely monitors 
standards in the academy and provides detailed advice. Governance is good. Governors interpret fully the 

detailed information about the quality of teaching which school leaders provide. They are well informed 
about how school leaders tackle any underperformance '' 

 
Kirk Balk Academy 

Opening in 2011, Kirk Balk is one of the best resourced schools in the region , set within a multi-million 

pound new build campus. We provide a learning environment which opens up high aspirations to our 

young people and their families. 

 
Manor Academy 

At Manor Academy, all of our children are regarded as individuals and we ensure that the five years spent 

with us are about so much more than an education based upon exams; they are about an experience which 

will remain with our students for the rest of their lives. Our ethos is about achievement at all levels, pride 

in our Academy and ourselves, and encouragement. 

 
North Shore Academy 

North Shore in Stockton on Tees is an 11-16 Academy  that joined the Northern Education Trust in 

September 2012. A new leadership team have improved the behaviour of pupils and the quality of 

teaching. North Shore is on a journey towards being a good school. The Academy is developing a strong 

learning culture with a range of teaching and learning styles to meet the needs of all students. 

 
OfSTED March 2016 Reports 

"The recently reconstituted senior team has been effective in ensuring that pupils ' behaviour is generally 

good and that the school provides a calm environment in which they can learn.Leadership of teaching, in 
terms of classroom management, has been effective so lessons proceed smoothly. Leaders have ensured 
that policies relating to the classroom are being followed, for example those concerning behaviour and 
marking. Weak teaching is challenged. The governing body is increasingly effective and provides robust 
challenge when appropriate. Since the previous inspection. the governing body has become increasingly 
effective". 

 
Red House Academy 

Red House Academy converted to a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy in October 2014. Our 

ethos is to create a culture of innovation and creativity that encourages high aspirations and ambition, in an 

enterprising environment, in which all students, their fam ilies and the local community find their learning 

cba1lengjng, engaging and motivating. 
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OfSTED April2016 Reports 

"The governing body is now sharply focused  on pupils'  outcomes across the academy. Governors are 
challenging senior leaders appropriately. Since the last inspection, governors have received training and 

support from the trust so that they are now better placed to understand pupils' progress. and to challenge 
senior and middle leaders and ensure their accountability fo r standards. They recognise the urgency with 
which change needs to happen in order to ensure outcomes are at least good". 

 
Thomas Hepburn Community Academy 

Thomas Hepburn Community  Academy  converted  to a Northern  Education Trust sponsored academy on 

I st October 2013. The academy is an inclusive academy which celebrates the achievements of all students, 

strives for excellence in everything they do, and puts learning and teaching at the very heart of all they do 

The academy has a new building which has been welcomed by children, staff and parents/carers. State-of­ 

the-art, specialist facilities exist throughout the academy with an areas having the latest  technology 

available including interactive whiteboards or large screen, interactive TVs in all teaching areas. 

 
Thorp Academy 

Thorp Academy converted to a Northern  Education Trust sponsored academy on 1st September 20 14. Our 

principles are about caring, taking responsibility for our learning and making use of all of the opportunities 

life in a busy Academy gives us. The academy is currently in the process of receiving a new state of the art 

building which will be completed during 2017. 

 
Abbey Park Primary Academy 

Abbey Park Primary Academy converted to a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy on 1st 

December 2013. The aims of the academy are to create a safe, secure and caring environment, to promote 

both high standards, effort and achievement and cultural, moral and spiritual understanding of our children. 

 
OfSTED June and November 2015 Reports 

"Northern Education TntSt has provided appropriate and effective professional advice to the school and 
has offered appropriate and effective support and advice. This has helped the school to offer pertinent staff 
development and to use informat ion about its pupils to prioritise actions. Excellence in governance is a 
Trust priority and governance is becoming increasingly effective in achieving this aim. Northern 

Ed ucation Trust is providing effective support and challenge. The primary director and the achievement 
partner make regular visits to check on progress and to challenge at the slightest sign of 
underachievement ". 

 
The Ferns Primary Academy 

The Ferns Primary Academy (formerly Plodder Lane Primary School) is a primary school in Farnworth, 

Bolton which converted to an Academy in September 2012 following a request from Bolton Council for 

the Northern Education Trust to sponsor it. The new principal and deputy head arrived in September 2012 

and have made some significant changes which bas been acknowledged in its latest OfSTED judgment of 

"Good". 

 
OfSTED May 2014 Report 

"Successful partnerships with the local authority and the school's sponsoring trust are helping to improve 
the quality of teaching and pupils' achievement. Working well together, they have contributed to the 

school's improving pich1re of teaching and pupils' achievement. Governance is good. Working closely 
with school leaders, the governing body has been decisive in tackling underpe1jormance and weaker 
teaching. It has supported the Principal well during the many challenges she hasfaced, as well as holding 
her to account for the school 's performance . Governors monitor the school's budget carefully and have 

ensured that the pupil premium funding is helping eligible pupils to make better progress throughout the 

school. Similarly, they have also used extra sports funding well. Governors ensure that arrangements to 
safeguard pupils meet requirements". 
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Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 

Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy is situated in Norton, on the outskirts of Stockton on Tees. They 

converted to a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy on 1st September 2013. Frederick Nattrass is 

a school where all children reach their full potential because lessons are inspiring and teachers have high 

expectations of what every child will achieve. 

 
OfSTED May 2016 Report 

"The Tnm and members of the governing body provide strong challenge and support to leaders to ensure 

that the academy continues to improve. Governors challenge the academy effectively. They visit regularly 

and analyse the academy's performance. They have a good understanding of the strengths and the areas to 

be improved. Northern Education Trust provides bespoke support and challenge to the school. The school 

improvement partner visits on a regular basis to ascertain how well the school is doing. The tntst also 

conducts reviews that identifY ways in which the school can improve". 

 
Hilton Primary Academy 

Hilton Primary Academy is a large school serving the Blakelaw, Slatyford and Cowgate areas of 

Newcastl upon-Tyne in north-east England. They converted to Academy status under Northern Education 

Trust Sponsorship on 1st December 2012. They believe in giving tlteir children fantastic learning 

experiences through a diverse, rich and creative curriculum. 

 
OfSTED June 2014 Report 

"Governors make an outstanding contributioh to the success of the school. Central to their work is a 

commitment to ensure that all pupils are supported, encouraged and challenged to achieve as well as they 

can. Governors are well aware of the needs of the community the school serves. The move to academy 

status has been managed extremely effectively. Excellent systems are in place to make sure finances are 

used as well as they can be. Governors have a relentless focus on ensuring additional fimding is used to 

improve pupils· achievement and progress". 

 
Merlin Top Primary Academy 

Merlin Top Primary Academy converted to an academy under sponsorship from the Northern Education 

Trust on 1st April 2013. The children, staff and governors at Merlin Top are proud of their school and of 

the way they have improved so much in the last 24 months. 

 
OfSTED March 2015 Report 

"The executive headteacher is supported by the Northern Education Trust, which has provided a range of 

support for the academy, including support for governors, coaching for leaders and opportunities for 

teachers to visit outstanding schools and to witness outstanding leaching. This has contributed to the 

improvements that have been made in the quality and  impact of teaching. Governance  has recently 

improved and is increasingly effective. Governors are informed about the quality of teaching and how 

action taken by the executive headteacher is tackling weaknesses". 

 
Mount Pelion Primary Academy 

Mount Pelion Primary Academy converted to an academy under sponsorship from tbe Northern Education 

Trust on 1st April2013. Mount Pelion is a large academy serving the West Central area of Halifax in West 

Yorkshi re. They believe in giving children fantastic learning experiences through a diverse, rich and 

creative curriculum . 

 
OfSTED March 2015 Report 

"The academy 's  sponsor, Northern  Education  Trust, is effective  in its  role  of both supporting  the 

leadership of the academy and holding it to account. The academy works effectively and regularly with its 

achievement partner. whose work is commissioned through the Trust. All governors have a portfolio which 

identifies their specific areas of responsibility in the academy. Governors are e.ffective in their roles 

because they hold the Principal and senior leaders to account and provide support and advice in equal 

measure. Governors  check that the additional resources, booster sessions and help with costs for 

educational visits available to pupils eligible for support through the pupil premium are helping to raise 

their levels of attainment across the academy". 
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Norton Primary Academy 

Norton Primary Academy converted to an academy under sponsorship from the Northern Education Trust 

on 1st January 2014. It is their aim to ensure that every child has an equal opportunity to  flourish. They 

support them in developing high expectations of themselves and in mastering the skills necessary to ensure 

their journey into adulthood is a successful. 

 
OfSTED May 2013 Report 

"The school provides an interesting curriculum. Pupils benefit from a range of exciting activities that 

stimulate learning. They are proud of their school and have good and on occasion exemplary attitudes to 

learning. They are polite, friendly and hardworking ". 

 
The Oak Tree Academy 

The Oak Tree Academy converted to a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy on 1st September 

2013. The Oak Tree Academy is a large school with a long tradition of serving the local community. 

Recent year 6 SATS test results are the best in the school's history and represent an excellent improvement 

on previous years. This has been the result of a tightly structured improvement plan and the hard work and 

commitment of all staff and pupils. 

 
OfSTED December 2015 Report 

"The academy improvement plan is focused on the most important priorities and  identified appropriate 

actions and timescales for improvement, and listed who is responsible for making sure each action has the 

required impacL The plan is clear about the desired learning outcomes for pupils . The  growing 

effectiveness of leaders is evident in the improvements in teaching. Northern Academy Trust has trained 

and supported governors so that they are beginning to better understand their responsibilities. Northern 

Education Trust keeps a track of progress towards year group attainment targets every half term. In the 

summer term, the trust judged that the progress being made by the academy was not fast enough so 

challenged leaders to increase the pace  of improvement". 

 
Ryecroft Primary Academy 

Ryecroft Primary Academy in Bradford, which became a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy in 

September 2012, is rapidly improving. At the recent opening event Estelle Morris congratulated pupils on 

their stunning performance and their enthusiasm. OfSTED judged Ryecroft to be a good and improving 

school with outstanding features. 

 
OfSTED April 20 14 Report 

"Governors have a highly accurate picture of how well the school is doing compared with other schools 

through their regular visits to see the school at work and their clear understanding of data on pupils' 

progr ess. Governors check that the management of teachers • performance is thorough and know that pay 

progression  is dependent on teachers meeting targets relating to pupil progress.  Governors are very 

knowledgeable about current educational and school priorities. They are very well informed a.s to how the 

sportsfunding money is being used and know that pupil-premium fonding isproving effective in raising the 

attainment of eligible pupil s''. 

 
Southmere Primary Academy 

Southmere Primary Academy in Bradford, became a Northern Education Trust sponsored academy on 1st 

September 2014. They currently have two classes in every year group up to Year Four. As part of their 

expansion to two form entry they now have a new Key Stage 2 block which houses a second library, sports 

hall and smart new classrooms. Their grounds provide a wealth of learning  opportunities  through  the 

wildlife and gardening areas and sports pitch. They also work with the Joshua Project a local charity which 

provides a safe place for young people to socialise in the evening. 

 
Going Concern 
After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy 

Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this 

reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details 

regar<ling the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 

 
Pagell 
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Financia l Review 

 
The Trust's accounting period is from 1 September 20 15 to 31 August 20 16. 

 
Most of the Trusts income is obtained from the Education Funding Agency (EFA) in the form of recurrent 
grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes .The grants received from the EFA during the 
year ended 31 August 2016 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement 
of Financial Activities. Grants are made to each of the individual academies within the trust and are 
restricted to fund the activities of the academy to which they are granted. 

 
Academies also receive grants for their major assets from the EFA and via the Local Authorities. In 
accordance with the Charities Statement of Recommended  Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities'  (SOR.P 20 15), such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) as 
Restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual 
depreciation  charges over the expected useful  life of the assets concerned. 

 
Durin g the year ended 31 August 2016, total expenditure of £79,820k (2015: £72,015k) (excluding the 

pension fund inherited on conversion in 2015) was met by recurrent grant funding from the EFA, other 

incoming resources, and funding carried forward from the previous year. The surplus of income over 

expenditure for the year was £26,502k. Tbis surplus added to current reserves of £94,855k provides 

overall cumulative reserves for the year ended 31 August 2016 of£ 102,137k 

 
At 31 August 2016 the net book value of tangible fixed assets was £125,225 (2015: £99,779) and 

movements in Tangible Fixed Assets are shown in note 14 to the financial statements . The assets were 

used exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of  the 

academies within the trust. 

 
Expenditure in the year has supported the key objectives of the Trust, with budgets being set in line with 

operational requirements that supported these. In the course of the year the academies have continued to 

refine the staffing structures required to deliver their  objectives within the funding available. The Trust 

also enhanced its central team including finance, HR, property and operations, which provide back office 

services as well as professional  support to the academies. 

 
Reserves Policy 

 
The level of reserves to be held by individual academies and then as a Trust overall has been considered 

using both Trustee knowledge and experience coupled with best practice from CIPFA Treasury 

Management (in public services) and NPC Charity Financial Analysis. 

 
The Trust policy has been prepared to help satisfy five main purposes: 

I. To support Trustees in their statutory responsibilities  and to manage effectively public 

funds in the provision of managing NET and delivering its objectives and priorities. 

2. To emphasise the overriding importance of effective risk management as the foundation 

for ensuring organisational going concern. The main risks being managed at present relate 

to funding adjustments, declining student numbers,  excessive  increases  in  student 

numbers, proposed changes in funding and operational activities both internally and 

externally. 

3. To provide transparency in decision making including providing clarity over the use of 

banking services and financial instruments that NET may plan to use for the prudent 

management I investment. 

4. To encourage the pursuit of value for  money  and  to  promote  the  reasoned  use, 

development and appreciation of resources to improve school improvement. 

5. To assist those involved in the regulation and review of finance in the public services, 

particularly those charged with audit and governance. 
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Academies are to build reserves over the medium term equivalent to two twelfths of the gross expenditure 

 two months revenue spending). This is in line with current EFA thinking around prudence in relation to 

budgeting I best practice guidance and established based on 2014/15 gross expenditure. This maybe 

updated by Trustees as the MTFP is prepared each year but Trustees do reserve the right to amend the 

policy in the interests of the Trust or specific academies. 
 

The unrestricted reserves held as at 31st August 2016 was £5,531k and the restricted general reserves for 

the same period were £2, 133k. The reserves policy seeks a level of reserves of £11.2m by 31st August 2018 

and the Trust is working towards this target by ensuring school budgets and associated staffing levels and 

resources are being planned and managed effectively over the medium term. Trustees however may decide 

to redirect fmancjal resource to areas of priority and this will be the  case  during  2016/ 17 and going 

forward where  reserves will be used to further support school improvement. The level of resource is 

dependent on the current recruitment process undertaken with around 4 staff being considered for the 

primary academies and  l0 staff for the secondary academies . 

 
At the year end any balances being carried forward will be considered as part of the policies and guidance 

in relation to reserves and budget setting. All funds remain that of the Trust and will be consolidated into 

the armual Financial Statements. 

 
The Restricted Pension Fund is in deficit to the value of £33,755k (2015: £13,536k) as at the year end. 

However this has been inherited upon conversion to Academy status and Trustees wiii continue to monitor 

this situation closely. It should be noted that this deficit does not present the Trust with a current liquidity 

problem or threat and pension administrators will review over the next few years contributions with the 

likely and anticipated result to be increased employee and employer contributions to address the deficits 

faced. 
 

Key Performance Indicators (KPI) 
 

As an organisation in its infancy and currently in a pbase of stability following rapid growth over the past 

two years , the Trust is in the process of developing its Business Plan and associated KPI targets. A 

Business Plan for the period 2015/ 16 to 2017/ 18 bas been approved by Trustees. The K.PI 's developed 
cover both financial and non-financial targets and information is currently being gathered  against  these 

KPI's and will be reported to both the Trusts Sub-Committees and  Board  for recommendation  and 
approvaJ. 

 
Investment Policy 

 
The Trost Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) is responsible for approving the Investment Policy and bas 

on-going responsibility to ensure monitoring and review of any investment. All borrowing shall be 

authorised by ARC, undertaken in the name of NET and conform to any relevant funding body 

requirements. Investments should be made to further the trust's charitable aims, but must ensure that 

investmen t risk is properly managed. The investment objectives based on prudence are; 

1. To achieve best  fmancial return available whilst  ensuring that security of deposits  takes 

precedence over revenue maximisation. 
2. Only invest funds surplus to operational need based on all fmanciaJ commitments being 

met without the Trust bank account becoming overdrawn. 

3. By complying with this policy, all investment decisions should be exercised with care and 

skill and consequently be in the best interests of the Academy, commanding broad public 

support. 

 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

The Trust identified two principal risks and uncertainties in the previous years financial statements which 

were around future changes in levels of funding and pupil levels. These continue to be the principal risks 

and uncertainties faced and will be mitigated and monitored via the risk management framework put in 

place by the Trust. 
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More detailed and specific financial risks that are managed throughout the year are; 

1.  Liquidity risk: the Trust manages its resources, including sufficient working capital, so all 

its operating needs ate met without the need for any external borrowing. A single bank 

account for academies has been developed and this has proven to be a significant factor in 

managing this risk. Surplus cash is invested through appropriate financial instruments as 

to maximise interest income without incurring excessive risks. 

2. Interest rate risk: in the absence of borrowing and with low levels of current and expected 

interest rates, the Trust is not exposed to significant interest rate risk. 

3. Credit risk; the Trust is subject to price inflation, but is funded by government alongside 

all other academies and schools, and credit risk is therefore considered to be negl igible. 

 
Risk Management 

 
NET has been through a process to assess its  current and future risks and to identify and implement 

strategies for addressing risks. This process allowed risks to be scored and prioritised in terms of their 

potential operational and financial impact, their likelihood of occurrence assessed  and  means  of 

mitigation identified. The Trust Board has reviewed the risks to which the Trust is exposed, and 

considered in particular those relating to the strategic development of the Trust and its academies on­ 

going performance,  as  well  as  its  operational  activities,  and  its  finances. 

 
Trustees recognise and support fully the need for informed and effective systems of internal control and 

risk management. In summary the key risks identified and being monitored and managed are; 

1.   Educational Standards 

2.  Health and Safety I Safeguarding 

3. Governance and Leadership 

4. Resources -Finance (including Value for Money) and Human Resources 

5. Resources -Academy Leadership and Effective Governance 

 
Plans for Future Periods 

Growth of the Trust was rapid during the first three years and the focus now is firmly fixed on our 

priorities to improve the achievement in our current academies. The two areas in summary to note for 

future periods would be; 

 
1. Planned and significan t investment commencing 2016/17 in  school  improvement 

leadership and capacity, recruitment and retention of teachers and the development of a 

partnership to establish an Institute of Teaching with authority to recruit, train and award 

teaching status. 

2. The only growth to be considered would be in similar geographical areas close to current 

academies, especially where there might be primary/secondary links. 

 
Employee Consultation & Disabled Employees 

 
The trust has an anti-discriminator y policy which specifically covers unfair treatment of any service user, 

employee or prospective employee on grounds of disability. The policy is available to all employees via a 

network based communication system and covers responsibility, employment access, complaints, training 

and monitoring. 

 
The trust recognises the importance of internal communications and as such has a policy of ensuring aU 

employees are kept infonned of developments within the organisation. The policy sets out the belief that 

teamwork through communication wiU lead to more efficient and effective service to both staff and 

beneficiaries. This is achieved through passing on information at regular team meetings and the trusts 

newsletter.The Trust bas an anti-discriminatory policy wh ich specifically covers unfair treatmen t of any 

service user, employee or perspective employee on grounds of disability. The polky is available to all 

employees via a network based communication system and covers responsibility, employment access, 

complaints, training and monitoring. 
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The Trust recognises equal opportunities as an integral part of the best practice it operates within its 

workplaces. NET has established equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating an 

environment in which the contribution and needs of all are valued. 

 
Assessed disability access and toilets have been installed and where necessary and possible entrance ways 

enhanced and widened to enable wheelchair access to all main areas of the Trusts academies. The Trust is 

committed to support the employment of disabled person in both recruitment and retention of employees 

who become disabled whilst in its employment , as well as through training, career  development  and 

general awareness and support. 

 
The Trust recognises the importance of internal communications and as such has a policy of ensuring all 

employees are kept informed of developments within the organisation. The Trust believe that teamwork 

through communication will lead to more efficient and effective service to both staff and beneficiaries . 

This is achieved through passing on information at regular team meetings. 

 
AU DITOR 

 
The appointment of RSM UK Audit LLP has been considered by Trustees and approved at the Audit and 

Risk Committee held on 17 November 2016. 

 
Statement as to disclosu re of information to the auditor 

 
The trustees have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 

the auditor is unaware. Each of the trustees have confumed that they have taken all the steps that they 

ought to have taken as trustees in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to 

establish that it has been communicated to the auditor. 

 
The trustees' Annual Report is approved by order of the Board of Trostees and the Strategic Report 

(included therein) is approved by the Board of Trustees in their capacity as the directors at a meeting 

on 14 December 2016 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 

 
 

l Hickman 

Accou nting Officer 

L Walton 

Chair of Tru stees 
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT   

 
Scope of Responsibility 

 
As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Northern Education Trust 

(NET) bas an effective and appropriate system of control,  fmancial and otherwise.  However,  such  a 

system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and 

can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement  or loss. 

 
The Trust Board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive (CEO), as 

accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both  propriety  and 

good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in 

the funding agreement between NET and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible 

for reporting to the Trust Board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

 
Governance 

 
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in 

the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities.   The Trust Board has formally met 4 times during the year. 

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Trost Board was as follows: 
 

BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 

OUT OF 
POSSffiLE 

 

L Walton  - Chairman 3 4 
CRoberts 4 4 
M Sanders 3 4 

T Grieveson 4 4 

P Callaghan 2 4 

S Duncan 3 4 
S Davison (resigned September 20 16) 2 4 

J Copping 2 4 

1 B Oglethorpe (resigned 2 December 2015) 0 2 

J Foster (appointed 16 December 2015) 2 3 
D Peannain (appointed 16 December 2015) 2 3 
D Hall (appointed 16 December 20 15) 1 3 
J Nolan (appointed 16 December2015) 3 3 
I Kershaw (CEO and Accounting Officer) 4 4 

 
At the beginning of the accounting period A Jordan resigned from the Board to focus on his work at Dyke 

House Sports & Technology College where be is Executive Principa l. He was subsequently replaced as a 

Secondary Principal representative by 1Nolan (Kirk Balk) on 16 December. 

 
1B Oglethorpe resigned from the Board in December 2015 due to health issues, to further strengthen the 

Board D Hall and D Pearmain were invited to  attend the December Board meeting  and subsequently 

invited to join as trustees. Also in December following a period of secondment as Executive Principal to 

the Ryecroft and Southmere primary academies 1 Foster was invited to re-join the Board. 

 
The Corporate Coordination and Scrutiny Group is a sub-committee of the Trust Board. Its purpose is to: 

 

Strategic role 
 

 
Co-ordination between the Achievement and Climate Committee and the Audit and Risk 

Committee on items of significant overlap between them in order that an aligned view is 

taken on all issues of organisational significance prior to final consideration  and sign off 

of issues by the Board. 

• Consider  matters  of  urgency  where  a  corporate  view  is  required  in  between  Board 

meetings . 
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• Consider  impact  of  changes  in  policy  by  government,  DFE,  EFA  and  Ofsted  and 

formulate the Trusts responses to the same. 

Formulate outline strategies, policies and plans for the Trust overall i.e. consider draft 

business plan prior to submission to the Board. 

Agree which requests for academies to join  the Trust should be agreed in outline and then 

receive and approve detailed business cases I due diligence information prior to formal 

agreement for new academies to join the Trust once reviewed by the Audit and Risk 

Committee. 

Agree major restructures of academies I groups of academies  within  the Trust to ensure 

the strategic impacts of these are fully consider prior to implementation. 

Agree all matters in relation to the remuneration  of Trustees and Officers that are not 

delegated to the Chief Executive by the Board I Scheme of Delegation. 

• Agree the communications and recruitment strategies for the Trust. 

 
Finance role 

• Consider/approve   Trust/Academy   annual   budgets   and   three   year   plans   making 

recommendations where necessary . 

• Consider/approve Trust/Academy capital funding. 

Hold  Academy  Principals and Chairs of Governing Boards  to account  for financial 

planning and performance. 

Recommend to the Trust, the adoption of a three-year business plan and annual budgets. 

Review arrangements for securing value for money, solvency and safeguarding of assets. 

Investigate, or commission investigations into, variation s in fmancial performance from 

budgeted targets. 

Consider in detail reports from the Chief Executive on issues related to assets, liabilities 

and capital. 
 

Scrutiny role 
 

 
Maintain an overview of the Trust's performance management arrangements. 

Review   selected   aspects   (both   policy   development   and   operation)   of   the  Trust's 

programmes  of improvement. 

Review selected aspects of the Trust's systems and organisationa l effectiveness. 

Consider  the  progress  in implementing  the  Trust  3 year  business  plan  against  the 

measures of success. 

Make recommendations  to the Trust Board and/or the Executive as appropriate. 

Review progress on recommendations made. 
 

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 

BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 

 

 

OUT OF 

POSSffiLE 
 

L Walton- Chainnan 

C Roberts 

TGrieveson 

M Sanders 

P Callaghan 

I Kershaw (CEO and Accounting Officer) 

10 10 

6 10 
9 10 

7 10 
I I 
10 10 
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The Audit and Risk Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Trust Board. Its purpose is to: 
 

OveraU 
 

 
• Maintain an oversight of the Trust's governance, risk management, internal control and 

value for money (vfm) framework. lt will report its findings annually to the Board and the 

Chief Executive as a critical element of the Trust's annual reporting requirements. 

The Audit Committee has no executive powers or operational responsibilities/duties. 
 

Intern al Control 

The Committee shall ensure that the internal control systems, including audit activities, of 

the Trust and any of its subsidiaries is monitored actively, independently and objectively 

in order to: 

o Improve the effectiveness of the Trust's internal controls. 

o Reinforce the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit function. 

o Provide a sounding board for Trust management on issues of concern in 

connection with the Trust's internal control systems. 

o Advise on the reliability of the Trust's infonnation systems and processes 

o Review Trust financial statements and budgets (Revenue & Capital). 

o Advise the Trust Board and CCSG on the appointment of internal and external 

auditors and providers of key financial systems i.e. Bank and General Ledger. 

o ApproveJconsider procuremen t recommendations in line with  Financial 

Regulations. 

o Underpin the objectivity and independence of the external auditors. 

o Increase stakeholder confidence in the objectivity and fairness of the Trust's 

financial reports and in the quality of the Trust's corporate governance. 

o To provide a medium of communication  from the Trust's auditors to the Trust, 

which is seen to be independent  ofTrust management. 

o To ensure that financial transactions are undertaken in accordance with the 

Trust's financial regulations. 

 
Risk Managemen t and Valu e for Money Framework 

To act as th e Trusts Risk Management Group. 

Report on value for money of the Trust on a regular basis taking into account relevant 

comparator review the timeliness of, and reports on, the effectiveness  of corrective action 

taken  by the Trust's management. 

Review and approve the statements to be included in the annual report concerning 

internal controls and risk management, prior lo consideration by the Board. 

Receive reports from external bodies for example the Education Funding Agency and 

National Audit Office, and consider any issues raised along with management responses 

and action  plans. 

• Review the Trust's codes of conduct, ethics and related corporate responsibility policies 

and how these are communicated and monitored; and 

To review staff pension arrangements. 

 
Whistleblowing 

• Review the adequacy and security of the Trust's arrangements for its employees and 

contractors to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible wrongdoing in financial 

reporting or other matters. 
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 
 

BOARD  MEMBER MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 

OUT OF 
POSSffiLE 

 
 

M Sanders - Chair 

P Callaghan 

J Nolan 

D Hall (appointed 16 December 2015) 

IKershaw (CEO and Accounting Officer) 

6 6 

4 6 
6 6 

1 6 

5 10 
 

The Achievement and Climate Committee is also a sub-committee ofthe main Trust Board. Its purpose is 

to: 

 
Consideration of the evidence in meeting the Key Performance Indicators set by the Trust 

and to hold the Leadership Team, whether Central Team or Academy, to account. 

• Consideration of evidence about the academic attainment and progress of students over 

time 

Consideration of the evidence about attendance and behaviour of students 

Consideration of evidence about the quality of teaching and learning provided to students 

Consideration of the evidence about the range and quality of extra-curricular provision 

experienced by students 

Consideration of the quality of provision for staff development and its impact upon the 

quality of provision 

To consider the views of parents and students about the quality of provision 

To consider on behalf of the Trust Board the overall human resources strategy. 

To agree key personnel and staff developm ent policies which form part of that strategy. 

To monitor the effectiveness of the Trust's human resources strategy. 

Consideration and approval of the curriculum and extra curriculum provision and the 

teaching and support staff resources required to deliver the entitlement curriculum in the 

academies 

Consideration and approval of the of the Academies Improvement Plans - short and 

medium term 

The consideration of the general view of the condition and suitability for learning of the 

academies buildings and sites and consideration of the quality of premises and the 

learning environment; 

To review the procedures for risk assessment of health and safety matters in academies 

• and to ensure that Health and Safety issues are appropriately prioritised for action; 

• To establish and review a Perfonnance Managemen t policy for all staff; 

Consideration and approval of the of the plans to develop and support the professional 

development of all staff, alongside the resources required 

 
Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 

 

BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 

OUT OF 

POSSffiLE 
 

T Grieveson - Chair 5 5 
S Davison 4 5 

J B Oglethorpe (resigned 2 December 2015) 0 3 
D Pearmain (appointed 16 December 2015} 2 3 
J Foster (appointed 16 December 2015) 3 3 

S Duncan 3 5 
I Kershaw (CEO and Accounting Officer) 4 5 
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Review ofValue for Money 
 

As accounting officer,  the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy  Trust delivers  good 

value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the 

educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 
 

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money 

during each academic year, and reports to the Trust Board of trustees where value for money can be 

improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the 

Academy Trust bas delivered improved value for money during the year by in summary (more detailed 

commentary is outlined in the Trustee Report): 

 
For Secondary Academies the key headline indicator at KS4 historically has been 5 or 

more A*-C GCSE's or equivalent including English, Maths. There was marked progress 

at Blyth and Red House where results increased by  11% up to 38% and 37%. Three 

academies Orangefield, Kirk Balk and Thorp had their best results of the last eight years. 

Primary results at The Ferns were outstanding, with 76% of pupils achieving at least the 

expected standard in reading, writing and maths. Reading, writing and maths progress 

measures  were si,gnificantly above national  average and  comfortably in the top 5th 
percentile nationally. The threshold result at Norton was also above national average. 

Their writing progress was significantly higher than national average and reading and 

maths progress broad ly in line. 

The Trust Central Team has commissioned a number of large and complex procurement 

exercises within Facilities Management, Catering, ICT and broadband. A further exercise 

has been commissioned in partnership with another large Multi-Academy Trust with 

regards energy. The benefits of these reviews will start to be realised during 2016117 . 

 
The Pumose of the System of Internal Control 

 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 

risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. lt can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not 

absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process 

designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and 

objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 

and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in 

place in NET for the period 1 September 2015 to 3 I August 2016 and up to the date of approval of the 

annual report and financial statements. 

 
Capacity to Handle Risk 

 
The Board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the 

operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The 

Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a fonnal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and 

managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the accounting period ending 31 

August 2016 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is 

regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees. 

 
The Risk and Control Framework 

 
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management 

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation 

and accountability. Inparticular, it includes: 

 
• comprehensive  budgeting  and monitoring  systems  with  an  annual budget  and periodic 

financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees 
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• regular reports and reviews by the Audit and Risk Committee which indicate financial 

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and 

expenditure  programmes 

• setting of annual audit and financial reporting plans 

• clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines 

• delegation of authority and segregation of duties 

• identification and management of risks 

 
The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and appointed Beever 

and Struthers as internal auditor. 

 
The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on 

the Academy Trust's ·financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included: 

testing of payroll and HR systems 

testing of Education Funding Agency, Academies Financial Handbook "Musts" 

testing of Financial Management, Financial Administration and Procurement 

testing of Business Continuity , Risk Managemen t, ICT and Health and Safety 

 
Based on a Trustees appwved Internal Audit Plan Beever and Struthers report regularly to the Board of 

Trustees, through the Audit and Risk Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the 

discharge of the Board of Trustees' fmancial responsibilities. 

 
Review of Effectiveness 

 
As accounting of'ficer the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control. During the year in question the review has been informed by: 

the work of the internal auditor 

the work of the external auditor 

• the work of the Trust Central Finance Team 

 
The accounting officer bas been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of 

internal control by the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address auditor recommendations and 

ensure continuous improvement and further strengthening of the systems in place. 

 
Approved by order of the members ofthe Board ofTrustees on 14 December 2016    and   signed   on   its 

behalf by: 
 
 

 
 

I Hickman 
Accounting Officer 

L, Walton 

Chair of Trustees 
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STATEMENT ON REGULARlTY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE 
 

 
As Accounting Officer of Northern Education Trust, I have  considered my responsibility to notify the 

Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety 

and non-compliance with EFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place 

between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State.  As part of my consideration  Ihave had due regard 

to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2015. 

 

I confirm that I, and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees, are able to identify any material irregular or 

improper use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of 

funding under the trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2015. 

 
Iconfirm that no instances of material irregular, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been 

discovered to date. lf any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these wi11 be notified to 

the board of trustees and the EFA. 
 
 

 
 

 
IHickman 

Accounting Officer 
 

 
 

Date: 14 December 2016 
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 
The trustees, who are also directors of the Charitable Company, are responsible for preparing the Trustees 

Report (including the Strategic Report) and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual 

Accounts Direction issued by the Education Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards 

(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable Jaw and regulations. 

 
Company Jaw requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each fmancial year. Under company 

law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Charitable Company and of its incoming resources and application of 

resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period . In preparing these fmancial statements, 

the trustees are required to: 

 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether  applicable  UK Accounting  Standards  have been  followed, subject to  any  material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Charitable Company will continue in business. 

 
The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and 

explain the Charitable Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 

financial position of the Charitable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements 

comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 

Charitable Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 

other irregularities. 

 
The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies 

financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial 

management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the EFA/DfE have been applied 

for the purposes intended. 

 
The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and tinancial information 

included on the Charitable Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 

preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions . 

 
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2016 and signed on its behalf 

by: 
 

 

 
 

 

L Walton 
Chair of Board 
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INDEPEN DENT AUDIT OR'S REPORT TO THE MEM BERS OF NORTHERN 

EDUCATION  TRUST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016 

 
We have audited the financial statements of Northern Education Trust for the year ended 31 August 2016 

on pages 32 to 64. The fmancial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 

applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice), including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 

freland", and the Academies: Accounts Direction 2015/6 issued by the Education Functing Agency. 

 
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members , as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 

of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an audi1or's report and for 

no other purpose. To the fullest exten permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit 

work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 
Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor 

As explained more fully  in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out  on page 28, the trustees 

(who act as governors for the charitable activities of the charitable company, and are also the directors of 

the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the  preparation  of  the 

fmancial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

Our responsibi lity is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 

applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to 

comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors . 

 
Scope of the audit of the financial statement-s 

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting 

Council 's website at http://www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate 

 
Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2016 and of 
its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the 
year then ended; 

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice; 

- have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and 

- have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2015/6 issued by the 
Education Funding Agency. 

 
Opinion on other requirement of the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Report and the incorporated Strategic Report for the 

financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the fmancial statements. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate
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INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTHERN 

EDUCATION TRUST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016 (CONTINUED) 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us 

to report to you if, in our opinion: 

- the charity has not kept adequate accounting records,or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or 

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 

 

 
 

 
ALAN DUNW ELL (Senior Statutory Auditor ) 

For and on behalfofRSM UKAUDIT LLP, Statutory Auditor 

Chartered Accountants 

2 Whitehall Quay 

Leeds 

LS14HG 

 
Date: 14 December 2016 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND 

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 

for the year ended 31 August 20 16 
 
 

 
 
 
 

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS 

FROM: 

Restricted Restricted 

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Endowment Total Total 

Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds 2016 2015 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

 

Donations and capital grants 3 162 1,784 1,946 2,004 

Donations -transfer from local 

authority on conversion 19,8 10 

Donations -tran sfer from local 

authority- capital donation l4 29,516 29,516 

 
Charitable activities: 

Funding for the trust's education 

operations 4 1,696 71,572 73,268 66,313 
Other trading activities 5 1,588 1 ,588 1,474 
Investments 6 4 4 5 

 
 

Total 3,450 71,572 3!,300 106,322 89,606 

 
EXPENDITURE ON : 

 
Charitable activities : 

Trust 's educational operations 7 (3,675) (70,375) (5,770) (79,820) (72,015) 

Pension deficit inherited from local 

authority on conversion 25 (4,691) 

 
Total (3,675) (70,375) (5,770) (79,820) (76,706) 

 
 

NET JNCOM EI(EXPEN DITURE) (225) 1,197 25,530 26,502 12,900 

 
Transfers between funds 20 (463) 463 

 
OTHER RECOGNISED 

GAJNS/(LOSSES) 

Investment gains 63 63 
Remeasurement of net defmed 

benefit obligations 25 (19,283) (19,283) 1,142 

 
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (688) (18.086) 25,993 63 7,282 14,042 

 
RECONCJLlA TION OF FUNDS 

Total funds brought forward 20 6,2 19 (13,536) 100,640 1,532 94,855 80,813 

 
TOTAL FUN DS CARRI ED FORWARD 5,531 (31.622) 126,633 1,595 1 02,137 94,855 

 
 

All of the trust's activi ties derive from continuing operations and acquisitions during the above two financial periods. 
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BALANCE SHEET 

At 31 August 2016 Company Registered No. 07189647 
 

 

 
 
 
FfXED ASSETS 

 
Notes 

 
2016 

£'000 

  
2016 

£'000 

  
2015 

£'000 

 
2015 

£'000 

Investments 13   4,561    
Tangible assets 14   125,225   99,779 

CURRENT ASSETS        
Stock  17    17  
Debtors 15 4,257    3,430  
Investmen ts 16     420  
Cash at bank and in hand  6,821    10,745  

 
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one 

 11,095    14,612  

year 17 (4,875)    (5,850)  

NET CURRENT ASSETS    6,220   8,762 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABIUTlES    136,006   108,541 
 

CREDITORS;Amounts falling due after more 

than one year 

 

 
18 

  
 

 
(114) 

  
 

 
(150) 

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION LIABILITY    135,892   108,391 
 

Defined benefjt pension scheme liability 
 

25   
 

(33,755)   
 

(13,536) 

TOTAL NET ASSETS    102,137   94,855 

FUNDSOFTHEACADEMY        
Endowment funds 20   1,595   1,532 

 

RESTRICTED FUNDS        

Fixed asset funds '20   126,633   100,640 
General funds 20   2,133    

RESTRICTED FUNDS EXCLUDING PENSION RESERVE 128,766 100,640 
 

Pension reserve 20 (33,755)  (13,536) 

TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS  96,606  88,636 

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS 

General fund 
 

'20 
 

5,531 
  

6,219 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED FUNDS  5,531  6,219 

TOTAL FUNDS 20 102,137  94,855 

 

The financial statements on pages 32 to 64 were approved  by the trustees and authorised  for issue on  14 

December 2016 and are signed on their behalfby: 
 

 

IKershaw 

Accounting officer 

L Walton 

Chair of Board 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

For the year ended 31 August 2016 
 

 
Notes 

 
2016 

£'000 

  
2015 

£'000 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTNITIES 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

 

 
22 

 

 
(130) 

  

 
6,603 

 

CASH FLOW FROM  INVESTING  ACTNITIES 

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 

    

 

5 
Capital grants from DfE/EFA  1,910  1,096 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (1,509)  (1,299) 
Purchase of other investments  (4,078)   

 
Net cash used in investing activities 

  
(3,677) 

  
{198) 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVIT IES 

Net cash outflow from other loans 

  

 
(108) 

  

Cash (outflows)/inflows from Salix loan  (9)  145 

 
Net cash used in financing activities 

  
(1 I 7) 

  
145 

 
NET (DECREASE)IINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 

    

EQUNALENTS IN THE YEAR 

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year 
  

(3,924) 
  

6,550 

   
(3,924) 

  
6,550 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 

  
10,745 

  
4,195 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

 
22 

 
6,821 

  
10,745 

 
 

 
All of the trust's activities derive from continuing operations  and acquisitions during the above two 

fmancial periods. 
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General information 

Northern Education Trust is a charitable company. The address of the trust's principal place of business is 

given on page 1. The nature of the trust's operations are set out in the Trustees' Report. 

 
Basis of Accounting 

The fmancial statements of the trust have been prepared under the historical cost convention in 

accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 

102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities : Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to 

charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the 

UK and Republic of freland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 

2015 to 2016 issued by EFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The trust is a public 

benefit entity under FRS 102 and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 

102. 

 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 

These policies have been app.lied consistently to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

 
These financial statements are the first financial statements of Northern Education Trust prepared in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the 

UK and Republic oflreland' (FRS 102). The financial statements ofNorthem Education Trust for the year 

ended 31 August 2015 were prepared in accordance with previous UK GAAP. The following accounting 

policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered matetial in relation to 

the financial statements. 

 
Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adjustments made, except to the extent that the trust 

has taken advantage if exemptions to retrospective application of FRS 102 permitted by FRS 102 Chapter 

35 'Transition to this FRS'. Adjustments are recognised directly in reserves at the transition date. 

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the functional currency of the trust. 

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where 

otherwise indicated. 

 
Going Concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Trust's Leadership Team 

continues to undertake focussed and detailed reviews of individual academy resources and the challenges 

faced. Plans to restructure and revise resources and staffing levels are planned at four academies during the 

coming year. Plans will seek to overcome and smooth a range of complex difficulties which in the 

main centre around falling student numbers and historic creditor repayment. There are also issues relating 

to ongoing pension deficit additional payment requests by two local authority funds, PFI payments in 

excess of PPI funding received and a continued commitment to the previous year's restructure plans at 

Kearsley and Blyth. Trustees have considered the trusts Leadership Team1s plans and remain confident 

that trust cash flows are sufficient to meet liabilities as they fall due for at least one year from the date of 

approval of the financial statements. 

 
Incoming resources 
All incoming resources are recognised when the trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable 

and the amount can be measured with sufiicient reliability. 

 
Grants receivable 

Grant income is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a recejvable basis. The balance of 

income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds 
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Grants receivable (continued) 

on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions 

there is not unconditional entitlement  to the income and its recognition is deferred  and included in 
creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs 
before income is received, the income is accrued. 

 
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it 

is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a 

liability. 

 
Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement, when performance-related conditions have been 

met, and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital 

grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. 

 
Other grants from government agencies and other bodies are recognised in the period in which they are 

receivable to the extent the conditions of funding have been met.  Where income is received in advance of 

entitlement of receipt its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where 
entitlement occurs before income is received the income 1s accrued. 

 
Donations 
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions), where 

the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 

 
Other income 
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised at fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable in the period it is receivable and to the extent the trust has provided the goods or services. 
 

Donated proper ties 
A donated property, being the gift of a fixed asset, is capitalised only when it is brought into use. The 

property is measured at existing use value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case 

the cost of the property to the donor should be used. The property value is recognised as income in the 

restricted fixed asset funds and corresponding amount is included in the appropriate ftxed asset category 

and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the trust 's accounting policies. 

 
Interest receivable 
Interest receivable is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis, and is stated 

inclusive of related tax credits. 
 

Expenditure 
Expertditure is recognised once there is a legal or construction obligation to transfer economic benefit to a 

third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be requited in settlement and the amount 

of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity 

are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking 

each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are directly allocated to that activity. Shared 

costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single 

activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central 

staff costs are allocated on the basis oftime spent, and depreciation charged allocated on the portion of the 

asset 's use. 

 
• Expenditure on Raising Funds 

 
This -includes all expenditure incurred by the trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and 

includes costs of all fundraising activities, events and non -charitable trading. 
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• Charitable Activities 

 
These are costs incurred on the trust's educational operations to further its charitable aims for the 

benefit of its beneficiaries, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the trust 

apportioned to charitable activities. 

 
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 

 
Tangible fu::ed assets 
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of 

depreciation and any provision for impainnent. Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it is probable 

that such costs will generate future economic benefits. All other costs of repairs and maintenance  are 

charged to the Statement of Financial Activities as incurred. 

 
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write 

off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life to its residual value, as 

follows: 
 

Leasehold property and improvements 

Fixtures and fittings 

Computer equipment 

Motor vehicles 

2% to 15% straigbt line basis 

25% straight line basis 

25% straight line basis 

25% straight linebasis 
 

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal , for 

the asset as if it were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. 

 
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 

the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed 
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impainnents. Impairment losses are recognised in 

the Statement of Financial Activities. 

 
Where  tangible  fixed  assets  have  been  acquired  with  the  aid  of  specific  grants,  either  from  the 

Government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over 

their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring 

the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited  to a restricted  fixed asset fund in the 

Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant 

assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where 

tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to 

the unrestricted fund. 

 
Leasehold Property 

Leasehold properties are recognised in the balance sheet at their depreciated replacement cost as 

specialised properties (in accordance with FRS 102 section 17). It is deemed appropriate to capitalise 

leasehold properties as the organisation will have full use of the asset for its useful economic life. 

 
Where leasehold properties represent donated assets they are recognised in the balance sheet at tbe fair 

value of their depreciated replacement cost on the date of their conversion. 

 
The fair value of their depreciated replacement cost is determined through calculation by an independent 

expert; or historic cost transferred from previous Local Education Authority body; or insurance valuation; 

or internal valuation. 
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In accordance with FRS 102 section 27 where an event or circumstance arises that may indicate that the 

carrying value of the asset is not recoverable an impairment is recognised. This risk is assessed on annual 

basis by those charged with governance. 

 
Where independent valuations for EFA reporting requirements have been obtained, these are considered 

to represent such an event or circumstance. Due to the cost outweighing the benefit it is not the 

organisation 's policy to obtain an independent valuation for every property recognised in the balance 

sheet. 

 
Leasehold property is depreciated over its estimated useful economic life. Estimated useful economic life 

is determinyd by industry experience driven by information provided by independen t experts. 

 
Liabilities 
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the 

settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the trust anticipates it 

will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it 
must provide. 

 
Leased assets 

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term . 

 
Investments 
Investments are valued at market value at the balance sheet date, as required by the SORP. 

 
Realised gains and losses are calculated by comparing the sale proceeds against the market value at 

previous balance sheet date, or cost if acquired during the period . Unrealised gains are calculated by 

comparing the current market value at the balance sheet date with that at the previous balance sheet date, 

or cost if acquired during the period . 

 
Stock 

Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to 

complete and sell. 

 
Financial Instruments 
The trust has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12of FRS 102 in full in respect offmancial instruments. 

 
Financial assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the trust becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. 

 
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual 

obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form. 

 
All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), 

except for those financial assets measured at fair value through the profit or loss, which are initially 

measured at fair value (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the 

arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A financial asset or liability that is payable or receivable in 

one year is measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be received or paid net of impairment, unless 

it is a financing transaction . If an arrangement constitutes a financing transaction , the financial asset or 

financial liability is measured at the presen t value of the future payments discounted at a market tate of 

interest for a similar debt instrument. 
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FinanciaJ assets and financial liabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right to 

set off the recognised amounts and the intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
Taxation 

The trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and 

therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. 

 
Accordingly, the trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received 

within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the 

Taxation and Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent tbat such income or gains are applied exclusively 

to charitable purposes. 

 
Short-term Employment benefits 

Short-term employmen t benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised 

as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the trust. The cost of any unused 

holiday entitlement the trust expects to pay in future periods is recognised in the period the employees' 

services are rendered. 

 
Pensions Benefits 

Retirement benefits to employees of the trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and the 

Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS').which are multi-employer defined benefit schemes. 

 
Defmed Benefit Schemes 

 
Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over 

employees ' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially 

level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the 

Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method. The TPS 1s a 

multi-employer scheme but there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting, it 

is therefore treate<i as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions 

recognised in the period to which they relate. Differences between contributions payable in the year and 

contributions actuaJly paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments. 

 
Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately. Pension scheme assets are measured at  

fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and 

discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent 

term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated 

at each reporting date. The amounts charged to net income are the current service costs and the costs of 

scheme introductions,benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs 

as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on 

tbe scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the 

period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on 

the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and 

losses. 

 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 

 
Fund accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the 

charitable objects of the trust at the discretion of the trustees. 
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Restricted Fixed Assets Funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes 

imposed by the Education Funding Agency, Department for Education and other funders where the 

asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose on a continuing basis. 

 
Restricted General Funds are resources  subject to specific restrictions imposed by funds or donors,  and 

include grants from the Educating Funding Agency/Department  for Education. 

 
Endowment Funds are resources to be held on trust to be retained for the benefit of the trust as a capital 
fund. 

 
Agency Arrangements 

 
The trust acts as an agent in the administering of 16-19 Bursary Funds from the EFA. Related payments 

received from the EPA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of 

financial activities to the extent that the trust does not have a beneficial interest in the individual 

transactions. Where funds have not been fully applied in the year then an amount will be included as 

amounts due to the EFA. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENTS 

 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. 

 
Critical accounting estimates and assumptiOhS 

The trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 

estimates assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates 

and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

 
The present value of the Local Government Pension  Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a 

number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The 

assumptions used in detennining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any 

changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of 

the pension  liability.  Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results  from the latest 

full actuarial valuation performed at 31 August 2013 has been used by the actuary in valuing the 

pensions liability at 31 August 20 16. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll 

forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the  carrying  amount  of  the 

pension  liability. 

 
Critical areas ofjudgement 

 
Useful economic lives of tangible assets 

The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful 

economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are 

re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on 

technological advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical condition of 

the assets. See note 14 for the carrying amount of the property plant and equipment. 

 
Def'med benefit pension scheme 

The company has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these 

benefits and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life 
expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. 

Management estimates these factors in determining the net pension obligation in the balance sheet. 

The assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends. See note 25 for the disclosures 

relating to the defined benefit pension scheme. 

 
Property valuations 

When new schools join the Trust, the new school land and buildings are included at a valuation at 

the date of transfer. This valuation is then treated as deemed cost. During the year two new school 

buildings were gifted to the Trust as noted in Note 14. 

 
Management have taken advice from professional valuers in determining the amounts at which 

those buildings are included in the financial statements. 
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2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG) 

 
Under the funding agreem.ent with the Secretary of State, the trust was not subject to limits on the 

amount of GAG that could be carried forward at 31 August 2016. 

 
3 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total 
Funds 
£'000 

Funds 
£'000 

Funds 
£'000 

2016 
£'000 

2015 
£'000 

 

Capital grants   1,546  1,546  1,088 
Devolved Fonnula Capital   238  238  330 
Other donations 162    162  586 

 

162 1,784 1,946 2,004 
 

 
 

The income from donations and capital grants in 2015 was £2,004k of which £580k was 

unrestricted, £1,418k was restricted fixed asset funds and £6k was endowment funds. 

 
4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 

DfE/EFA  GRANTS 

General Annual Grant (GAG) 

(note 2) 

Start up grants 

Pupil Premium 

Other DfEIEFA grants 
 
 
 
 

OTHER GOVERNMEN T GRANTS 

Local Authority grants 

SEN from LA 
Other Government Grants 

Nursery Grants and EYSFF 
 
 
 
 
 

Catering income 

Trip income 

TOTAL 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds  Funds  2016 2015 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 

 
61,238 61,238 55,774 

49 49 119 

6?030 6,030 5,583 
1,480 1,480 788 

 

 
68,797 68,797 62,264 

 

 
676 676 1,015 

464 464 272 

242 242 40 

1 ,393 1,393 1,320 

 
2,775 2,775 2,647 

 

 
1,018 1,018 855 

678 678 547 
 

 
1,696 71,572 73,268 66,313 

 

The income from the trust 's educational operations in 2015 was £66,313k of which £1,402k was 

unrestricted and £64,91lk was restricted general funds. 
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5 OTHER TRADING  ACTIVITIES 
 

Unrestricted 

Funds 

£'000 

Restricted EndoWl'l:lent 

Funds  Funds 

£'000 £'000 

Total Total 

2016 20 15 

£'000 £'000 
 

Lettings 744  744  771 
Uniforms 67  67  53 
Consultancy 23  23  355 
Insurance claims 63  63  88 
Other 691  691  207 

 

1,588 1,588 1,4'74 
 
 

Other trading activities income in 2015 was £1,474k of which £1,474k was unrestricted. 
 

6 INVESTMENT  INCOME  

  
 

Unrestricted 

Funds 

£'000 

 
 

Restricted 

Funds 
£'000 

 

E,ndowment 

Funds 

£'000 

 
 

Total 

2016 
£'000 

 
 

Total 

2015 

£'000 

  

Bank interest 
 

4      

4 
  

5 

 

Investment income in 2015 was £5k of which £5k was unrestricted. 
 

7 EXPENDITURE 
 

 
Non pay expenditure 

Staff Other Total Total 

costs Premises costs 20l6  2015 

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

 

Direct costs 
 

45,799    
 

6,521  
 

52,320  
 

48,962 
Allocated support costs 10,001  8,691  8,808  27,500  22,426 

 

55,800 8,691 15,329 79;820 71,388 
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7 EXPEND ITURE (continued) 
 

 

Net expenditure for the period includes: 2016 

£'000 
2015 

£'000 
 

Operating lease rentals 
 

100 
 

122 
Net interest on defined benefi1 pension liability (1,600) (I ,332) 
Depreciation 3,790 3,160 
Impairment of fixed assets (I ,805)  

 

 

Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its  

associates for: 
- audit 55 68 
- other services 8 30 
Fees payable to Internal Auditor 23 60 

 

Included within expenditure are the following transactions: 
 

 
Total 

£'000 
 

Unrecoverable debts 8 

There are no individual transactions exceeding £5,000. 

8 C TABLEACTnnTffiS 

 

 
 

Total Total 

2016 2015 

£'000 £'000 
 

Direct costs -educational operations 52,320 48,962 

Support costs -educational operations 27,500 22,426 

 
79,820 71,388 
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8 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES (continued) 

 
ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS 

 

  Total  Total 

  2016  2015 

  £'000  £'000 

 
 

Support staff costs 
 

10,001  
 

8,357 

 Depreciation 3,790  3,160 
 Impainnent on fixed assets 1,805   
 Technology costs 1,483  1,295 
 Recruitment and support 210  221 

 Maintenance of premises and equipment 1,607  1,250 
 Administration 782  779 
 Cleaning 560  501 
 Energy costs 1,177  1,227 
 Rent, rates and other occupancy costs 1,344  1,162 
 Insurance 803  752 

 Bank charges   24 
 Security and transport 479  459 
 Catering supplies 2,040  1,762 
 Other support costs 367  652 
 Defined benefit pension costs 474  402 
 Governance costs 578  423 

  27,500  22,426 

 

Expenditure on charitable activities was £79,820k (2015: £71,388k) of which £3,675k (2015: 

£1,789k) was unrestricted , £5,770k (2015: £3,160k) was restricted fixed asset funds and £70,375k 
(2015: £66,439k) was restricted general funds. 

 

9 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS 2016 
£'000 

 2015 
£'000 

 a.Staff costs    
 Staff costs during the year were:    
 Wages and salaries 44,575  40,986 

 Social security costs 3,667  3,046 
 Pension costs 5,525  5,720 

  53,767  49,752 

 
 

Supply teacher costs 
 

1,798  
 

1,797 

 Compensation  payments 235  501 

 

55,800 52,050 
 

b. Staff severance payments 

 
Included in staff costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £234,831 

(2015: £501,480). Individually,  the payments  were £10,460, £6,543, £10,120, £4,735, £12,625 , 

£6,000,  £8,200,  £2,393,  £11,065, £3,825, £8,550,  £1,540, £2,075,  £1,590,  £4,020,  £5,000, 

£12,170, £8,150, £21,575, £7,415, £5,470, £5,230, £7,700,£41,830, £9,350 and £17,200. 
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9 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS (continued) 

 
c. Staff numbers 

 
The average number  of persons  (including senior management  team) employed  by the trust  during 

the year expressed as full time equivalents was as follows: 

 
Education operations 2016 

No 
2015 

No 

 

Teachers 
 

636 
 

604 
Administration and support 676 698 
Management 122 126 

 1,434 1,428 

 

d. Higher paid staff 

 
Tbe number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded 

£60,000 was: 
 

 2016 

No 

 2015 

No 
£60,001 - £70,000 14  9 
£70,001 - £80,000 6  II 
£80,00 I  - £90,000 8  5 
£90,001 -£100,000 5  2 
£ 100,001 -£110,000 2  3 
£110,001 -£120,000 4   
£120,00 1 - £130,000 2  2 
£130,001 -£140,000    
£140,001-£150,000    

 
 

e. Key Management Personnel Compensation 

 
The key management personnel of the trust comprise of the trustees and the senior management 

team as listed on page 1 under Trust Corporate Senior Management Team. The total amount of 

employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance) 

received  by key  management  personnel  for their services to the trust was £818,079 (2015: 

£720,170). 
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10 CENTRAL SERVICES 

The trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year: 

School improvements 

Financial management 

HR and legal advice 

Property management 

Curriculum design 

Staff deployment 

Recruitment 

Audit services (internal and external) 

Data and Corero support 

Business services 

Health and safety 
 

The trust charges for these services provided was a flat 4% of income received , excluding targeted 

grants. 
 
 

 
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: 

2016 

£'000 

2015 

£'000 
 

The Ferns Primary Academy 

Hilton Primary Academy 

Merlin Top Primary Academy 

Mount Pelion Infants & Junior Academy 

Ryecroft Primary Academy 

Kearsley Academy 

North Shore Academy 

Dyke House Sports & Technology College 

Abbey Park Primary Academy 

Thomas Hepburn Community Academy 

The Orangefield Academy 

The Blyth Academy 

Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 

The Oak Tree Academy 

Norton Primary Academy 

Southmere Primary Academy 

Kirk Balk Academy 

Manor Academy 

Red House Academy 

Thorp Academy 

55 

70 

61 

97 

56 
122 

137 

272 

34 

128 

164 

186 

41 

72 
60 
64 

207 

254 

136 

238 

55 
63 

60 
95 

51 

106 

122 

256 
31 

141 

208 

164 

40 

66 

60 

60 
110 

126 

116 

249 
 

2,454 2,179 
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11 TRUSTEES' AND DIRECTORS ' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES 

 
Principal and Staff trustees and Directors only receive remuneration in respect of services they 

provide under the roles of Principal and staff members under their contracts of employments and 

not in respect of their services as trustees or Directors. Other trustees did not receive any 

payments from the trust in respect of their role as trustees. 

 
Ian Kershaw , lhe Chief Executive, received £140,678 (2015- £125,699) remuneration during the 

year. 

 
Gareth Edmunds, a Director of the trust received remuneration of £87,629 (2015 - £74, 105) and is 

accruing retirement benefits under Local Government Pension Scheme. The contributions paid in 

the year amounted to £20,600 (2015- £17,432). 

 
One director (2015: One) is accruing retirement benefits  under a defined benefit pension scheme, 

as detailed above. 

 
Related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 26. 

 
During the year ended 31 August 2016, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £6,063 (2015: 

£6,799) were reimbursed to 4 (2015: 6) trustees. 

 
12 TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE 

 
In accordance with normal commercial practice, the trust has purchased insurance to protect 

trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst 

on trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any claim and the cost for 

the year ended 31 August 2016 was £4,796 (2015: £5,583). 

 
The cost ofthis insurance is included in the total insurance cost. 

 

13 FIXED  ASSET INVESTMENTS 
 

 
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment 

.fimds funds funds Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 

Fair value at 1 September 2015 

Transfer from current asset investment 420  420 
Valuation changes 63  63 

Addition at cost 4,078 4,078 

Fair value at 31 August 2016 4,078 483 4,561 

The trust holds an investment portfolio consisting of mainly corporate bonds and cash. 
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14 TANGffiLE FIXED ASSETS 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Cost: 

Leasehold 

property  and 

improvements 

£'000 

 Fixtures 

and 

fittings 

£'000 

 

 
Computer Motor 

equipment vehicles Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

1 September 2015 101,080  2,459 2,995  63  106,597 
Additions 163  812 538  12  1,525 
Transfer from local         
authority 29,516       29,516 

 
31 August 2016 

 
130,759 

  
3,271 

  
3,533 

  
75 

  
137,638 

Depreciation:          
1 September 2015 4,194  1,054  1,531  39  6,818 
Charged in the year 2,351  652  771  16  3,790 
Impairment !,805        1,805 

 
31 August 2016 

 
8,350 

  
1,706 

  
2,302 

  
55 

  
12,413 

Net book value          
31 August 2016 122,409  1,565  1,231  20  125,225 

 
31 August 2015 

 
96,886 

  
1,405 

  
1,464 

  
24 

  
99,779 

 
The Trust's transactions relating to land and buildings included: 

 

• Two school buildings were donated to the Trust during the year. The properties have been 

occupied during the year and consequently capitalised as fixed assets. The formal handover is due 

to take place during the year ended 31 August 2017. 
 

 

15 DEBTORS 2016 

£'000 
2015 

£'000 

 
 

Trade debtors 
 

108 
 

185 

 Prepayments 689 681 

 Accrued income 1,638 1,809 

 VAT recoverable 1,822 755 

 
4,257 

 
3,430 
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NOTES TO THE FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 31 August 2016 
 

16 CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS 
 

 
Unrestricted 

fonds 

£'000 

 

 
Restricted 

fonds 

£'000 

 

 
Endowment 

fonds 

£'000 

 

 
 

Total 

£'000 
 

Fair value at 1 September 2015 

Transfer to fixed asset investment 

420 

(420) 

420 

(420) 
 
 

Fair value at 31 August 2016 
 

 
The trust holds an investment portfolio consisting of mainly corporate bonds and cash. 

 

17 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year 2016 

£'000 
2015 

£'000 

 
 

Trade creditors 
 

951 
 

1,553 

 Taxation and social security 998 940 

 Other creditors 949 954 

 EFA creditor- GAG abatement 353 419 

 Accruals and deferred income 1,624 1,984 

 

4,875 5,850 
 

 
Included  within  other creditors is a  loan of £ 17k  from  Salix which  is provided  on  the following 

tenns; repayment of £8,750 every 6 months,no interest is payable on the loan. 

 
DEFERRED INCOME £'000 

 

Deferred income at I  September 20J 5 

Resources deferred in the year 

Amounts released from previous years 

417 

104 

(417) 

 
 

Deferred income at 31 August 2016  104 

Deferred income held ar 31 August 2016 included Early Years Funding £nil (2015: £84k), free 

school meals grant £nil (2015: £189k) and other balances total ling £104k (2015: £144k). 
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18 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year 2016 

£'000 

20 15 

£'000 

Other creditors 114  150 

114 150 

Included within other creditor is a loan of£ 114k from Salix which is provided on the following 

terms; repayment of £8,750 every 6 months, no interest is payable on the loan. 

The loan repayments are as follows: 2016 

£'000 

2015 

£'000 

Expiring one year 

Expiring within two and five years inclusive 

Expiring inover five years 

 
17 134 

70 106 

44 44 
 
 

131 284 
 
 
 

 
19 FINANCIAL  INSTRUMENTS 

 

The trust has the following financial instruments: 
 

 
Financial assets 

 

 
2016 2015 

£'000 £'000 

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 1,746 1,993 
 

 
Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities measured a1 amortised cost 3,420 4,074 
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20 

 
FUNDS 

 
At 

1 September 

     
Gains, 

losses and 

  
At 

31 August 

  2015  Income Expenditure  transfers  2016 

  £'000  £'000 £'000  £'000  £'000 

 RESTRICTED GENERAL         
 FUNDS         
 General Annual Grant (GAG) (i)   61,238 (59,120)    2,118 

 Start up grants   49 (49)     
 Pupil Premium   6,030 (6,030)     
 Other DfE/EfA grants   1,480 (1,480)     
 Local Authority Grants   676 (676)     
 SEN from Local Authority   464 (464)     
 Other government grants   242 (227)    15 

 Nursery Grants and EYSFF   1,393 (1,393)     

 

71,572 (69,439) 2,133 
 

 
PENSION RESERVE (iv) (13,536) (936) (19,283) (33,755) 

 

RESTRICTED FIXED ASSETS 

FUNDS (ii) 
 

DfEIEFA capital grants 654  238  (892)     
IT Grant 291    (291)     
Other DtE capital grant   1,293  (75)    1,218 
Sponsorship capital contribution   253  (63)    190 
Assets inheri ted on conversion 86,409  29,516  (4, 120)  463  112,268 
Assets inherited on transfer 13,221    (264)    12,957 
Capital expenditure from GAG 29    (29)     
Capital expenditure from          
unrestricted funds 36    (36)     

  
100,640 

  
31,300 

  
(5,770) 

  
463 

  
126,633 

 

ENDOWMENT FUNDS 
 

1,532      
 

63  
 

1,595 

 
TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS 

 
88,636 

  
102,872 

  
(76,145) 

  
(18,757) 

  
96,606 

 
UNRESTRICTED  FUNDS (iii) 

 
6,219 

  
3,450 

  
(3,675) 

  
(463) 

  
5,531 

 
TOTAL FUNDS 

 
94,855 

  
106,322 

  
(79,820) 

  
(19,220) 

  
102,137 
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20 FUNDS (continued) 

 

 
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

 
(i) GAG balance carried forward is to be used for recurrent expenditure in the forthcoming period. 

Under the trust 's Funding Agreement with the Secretary of State the trust was not subject to a 

limit GAG which could be carried forward at 31 August 20 I 6. 

 
(ii) Restricted Fixed Asset Funds relate to income received from the DFE, other government 

grants, transfers from GAG income and income from sponsors of individual academies prior to 

merger with the trust. The funds balance includes donated capital , being school buildings and ICT 

assets. The depreciation relating to the assets procured is charged against these funds over the life 

of the assets. 

 
(iii) Unrestricted Funds relate to funds brought forward upon individual schools integrating with 

the trust and from self-generated income by the trust's Academies. 

 
(iv) The Restricted Pension Fund is in deficit to the value of £33,755k (2015: £13,536k) at the 

year end. However this has been inherited upon conversion to Academy status. The trustees will 
continue to monitor this situation closely. 

 
A total of £463k (20 I 5: £nil) has been transferred from unrestricted funds to restricted fixed asset 

funds to allocate the unspent capital included within unrestricted funds that is required to be 

recognised within restricted fixed asset funds. 

 
A total of £nil (2015: £177k) has been transferred from restricted ftxed asset funds to restricted 

funds for the use of a capital grant where the expenditure has not been capitalised. 
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20 FUNDS (continued) 

 
ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY FUND BALANCE 

 

 
 

2016 

  

 
 

2015 

  £'000  £'000 

 Fund balances at 31 August 2016 were allocated as follows:    
 The Fems Primary Academy 207  108 

 Hilton Academy 419  112 

 Merlin Top Primary Academy 396  243 
 Mount Pelion Infants & Junior Academy 807  366 

 Ryecroft Primary Academy 234  207 
 Kears1ey Academy (364)  (624) 

 North Shore Academy (358)  481 

 Dyke House Sports & Technology College 152  284 

 Abbey Park Primary Academy 238  158 

 Thomas Hepburn Community Academy (911)  (545) 
 The Grangefield Academy 1,405  926 

 The Blyth Academy 285  178 

 Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 212  95 

 The Oak Tree Academy 509  156 

 Norton  Primary Academy 697  407 

 Southmere Primary Academy 315  84 

 Kirk Balk Academy 1,178  802 

 Manor Academy 864  425 

 Red House Academy 1,294  1,287 

 Thorp Academy 201  37 

 The Centre (116)  1,032 

  7,664  6,219 

 
 

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 
 

126,633  
 

100,640 

 Endowment Fund 1,595  1,532 

 Pension Reserve (33,755)  (13,536) 

 

102,137 94,855 
 

 
Trustees take seriously their responsibility to ensure the Trust continues as a going concern over the 

medium term. Given the current overall economic climate, pressure on government spending, changes in 

establishing national oversight of academies and MAT's and funding of Local Government Pension 

Schemes (LOPS), medium term fmancial planning is a high priority for Trustees. 

 
The Trust continues to successfully evidence an effective and progressive approach to Financial Planning 

and Management with a seamless link to both school improvement and continuous student welfare. Overall 

Trust Reserves have risen incrementally (2012/13:£2m to £7.6m in 2015/16) providing financial stability 

but more importantly a foundation to now be able to invest substantially in school improvement. 

 
To date the TrQst has helped remedy a number of forecast budget deficits due to falling student rolls on 

conversion. We have done this by adopting joined up Budget Clinics with academies and their Local 

Governing Bodies. Kearsley Academy is an example of how effective Budget Clinic meetings have been 

with a deficit of £622,00 in 2014/15 reduced to £364,000 in 2015/16, with substantial reductions planned 

ovet the next two years a small forecast is planned for 2018/19 - 
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20 FUNDS (continued) 

 
The experience and success of this approach will be applied at both Thomas Hepburn and North Shore 

Academy. Medium Tenn Financia l Plans are being drafted for all academies and remedial action planned 

including various HR intervention where necessary. 

 
The analysis of academies by fund balance has been revised in the prior year as the trustees are of the 

opinion that this better reflects a true and fair view of the segregation of restricted and unrestricted funds 

between academies. 

 
TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY 

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows: 
 

 Teaching and 

Education 

 
 

 
Other 

 
 

 
Other Costs 

 

Support Staff  Support Educational (excluding  Total Total 
Costs  Costs Supplies depreciation )  2016 2015 
£000  £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 

The Ferns Primary         
Academy 1,082  257 42 414  1,795 1,716 
Hilton Academy 1,432  146 66 480  2,124 2,018 
Merlin Top Primary         
Academy 1,218  178 52 426  1 ,874 1,791 
Mount Pellon Infants &         
Junior Academy 1,624  530 119 361  2,634 2,666 
Ryecroft Primary Academy 1,216  195 88 468  1,967 1,696 
Kears1ey Academy 1,989  494 95 734  3,312 3,632 
North Shore Academy 2,861  546 92 1,039  4,538 4,058 
Dyke House Sports &         
Technology College 5,880  786 241 3,625  10,532 7,899 
Abbey Park Primary         
Academy 666  194 47 190  1,097 1,044 
Thomas Hepburn         
Community Academy 2,497  464 48 1,094  4,103 4,224 
The Orangefield Academy 2,743  398 86 955  4,182 4,669 
The Blyth Academy 3,261  590 68 I,181  5,100 5,599 
Frederick Nattrass Primary         
Academy 868  127 48 279  1,322 1,274 
The Oak Tree Academy 1,470  191 30 409  2,100 2,190 
Norton Primary Academy 

Southmere Primary 
1 234  108 52 308  1,702 1,791 

Academy 1,206  279 55 391  1,931 1,880 
Kirk Balk Academy 3,115  747 129 1,832  5,823 2,838 
Manor Academy 4,781  682 110 1,680  7,253 3,781 
Red House Academy 2,337  600 109 762  3,808 3,552 
Thorp Academy 4,241  640 117 1,681  6,679 7,088 
The Centre 78  2,427 29 (380)  2,154 2,399 

 

45,799 10,579 1,723 17,929 76,030 67,805 
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20 FUNDS (continued) 

 
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS 

  
Unrestricted 

Funds 

£'000 

 Restricted 

General 

Funds 

£'000 

Restricted 

Fixed Asset 

Funds 

£'000 

 
Endowment 

Fund 

£'000 

  
Total 

Funds 

£'000 

 

Tangible fixed assets    
 

125,225   
 

125,225 
Investments 4,078    483  4,561 
Current assets 1,453  7,122 1,408 1,112  11,095 
Cunent liabilities   (4,875)    (4,875) 
Non-cunent liability   (114)    (114) 
Pension scheme liability   (33,755)    (33,755) 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

AT 31 AUGUST 2016 
 

5,531 
  

(31,622) 
 

126,633 
 

1,595 
  

102,137 

 
 

21 FlNANClAL COMMITMENTS 

OPERATING LEASES 

At 31 August 2016 the total of the trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 

operating leases was: 

 2016 

£'000 
 2015 

£'000 
Land and buildings:    
Expiring within one year 1,006  1,006 
Expiring within two and five years inclusive 2,806  2,806 
Expiring in over five years 13,350  14,240 

 

17,162 18,052 
 

Other: 

Expiring within one year 

Expiring within two and five years inclusive 

Expiring in over five years 

 

 
100 123 

80 152 

5 14 
 

 
185 289 
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22 RECONCILlATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) TO NET 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
2016 

£'000 

 2015 

£'000 

 
 

Net income for the reporting period 
 

26,502  
 

12,900 

 
 

Adjusted for:    

 Depreciation 3,790  3,160 

 Impairment of fixed asset 1,805   
 Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,910)  (1,096) 

 Interest receivable 

Net gain on donation of school land & buildings 
 

(29,532) 
 (5) 

 Net gain on transfer of schools joining trust   (16,347) 

 Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited   4,691 

 Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 462  620 

 Defined benefit pensjon scheme finance cost 474  408 

  
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 

 
1,591 

  
4,331 

 
 

(lncrease)/decrease in stocks   
 

12 

 (Increase)/decrease in trade and other debtors (827)  (43) 

 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors (894)  2,303 

  
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 
(130) 

  
6,603 

 
 

23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIE S 

 
During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of 

any asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the trust is required either to re­ 

invest the proceeds or to repay to the EFA the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or 

disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State. 

 
Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the 

trust serving notice, the trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to: 

 
(a) the value at that time of the trust's assets held for the purpose of the trust; and 

 
(b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the 

Secretary of State under the Funrung Agreement. 

 
24 MEMBERS ' LIABILITIES 

 
Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in 

the event of it being wound up while be/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to 

be a member, such amount as may be required , not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities 

contracted before he/she ceases to be a member. 
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25 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS 

 
The trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff. Both are mu1ti-employer defined-benefit schemes. 

 
The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the 

LGPS 31 March2013 . 

 
Contributions amounting to £819k were payable to the schemes to the schemes at 31 August 2016 
(2015: £786k) and are included within creditors. 

 
Teachers' Pension Scheme 

 
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, 

governed by the Teachers' Pensions 2014. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members 

contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis -these contributions along with those made by employers 

are credited to the Exchequer. 

 
Valuation of the Teachers' Pensions Scheme 

 
Not less than every four years the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial  principles, 

conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions 

(Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the 

review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent 

on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. 

 
The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance 

with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The 

valuation report was published in June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent 
consultation are: 

 
• employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% 

employer administration charge (currently 14.1%) 

• total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future 

benefits of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together 

with the proceeds for the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 

million giving a notional past service deficit of£14,900 million 

• an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations 

• the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2.0% in excess of earnings. 

The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of 

return is 5.06%. 

 
The new employer contribution rate was 14.1% until 1 September 2015, when it increased  to 

16.48% (including a 0,08% administration fees), with an employer cost cap of 10.9% of 

pensionable pay. The employer contribution rate will be payable until the next valuation  as at 

March 20 16, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be 

payable from  1 Apri12019. 

 
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,468k (2015: £5,800k) . 

 
The TPS is a multi-employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for the 

scheme on as a defmed benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 
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25 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 
Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LOPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee­ 

administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2016 was £3,404k 

(2015: £2,913k), of which employer 's contributions totalled £2,595k (2015: £2,195k) and 

employees' contributions totalled £809k (2015: £718k). The agreed contribution rates for future 

years are 12.8% for employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees. 

 
The funds that the charitable company is part of are: Greater Manchester Pensjon Fund (The Ferns 

and Kearsley Academy), Teesside Pension Fund (Dyke House Sports & Technology College, 

North Shore Academy, Norton Primary Academy,  Orangefield Academy, Oak Tree Primary 

Academy, Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy and Manor Academy), Tyne & Wear Pension 

Fund (Central Team , Hilton Primary Academy, Red House Academy, Thorp Academy and 

Thomas Hepburn Academy), West Yorkshire Pension Fund (Merlin Top Primary Academy , 

Mount Pelion Infants & Junior Academy, Ryecroft Primary Academy and Abbey Park Primary 

Academy) , Northumberland County Council Pension Fund (Blyth Academy) and South Yorkshire 

Pension Fund (Kirk Balk Academy). 

 
Parliament has agreed , at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in 

the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be 

met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came i'nto force on 18 July 2013. 

 
Principal actuarial assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2013 

updated to 31 August 2016 by a qualified independent actuary. 
 

Rate of 

increase on 

salaries 

 
2016 

 
 
 
 

 
2015 

Rate of increase 

for pensions in 

payment / 

inflation 

2016 2015 

Discount rate for 

scheme liabilities 
 

 
2016 2015 

 % % % % % % 
The Ferns Primary Academy 3.4 3.9 2.1 2.7 2.1 3.8 
Hilton Academy 3.4 3.6 1.9 2.1 2.0 3.8 
Merlin Top Primary Academy 3.5 3.5 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.7 
Mount Pelion Infants & Junior Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Ryecroft Primary Academy 3.5 3.5 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.7 
Kearsley Academy 3.4 3.9 2.1 2.7 2.1 3.8 
North Shore Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Dyke House Sports & Technology College 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
The Centre 3.4 3.6 1.9 2.1 2.0 3.8 
Abbey Park Primary Academy 3.4 3.6 1.9 2.1 2.0 3.8 
Thomas Hepburn Community Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
The Orangefield Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
The Blyth Academy 3.5 3.5 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
The Oak Tree Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Norton Primary Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Southmere Primary Academy 3.4 3.6 1.9 2.1 2.0 3.8 
Kirk Balk Academy 3.6 4.1 1.9 2.3 2.1 4.0 
Manor Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Red House Academy 3.4 3.5 1.9 2.0 2.0 3.8 
Thorp Academy 3.4 3.6 1.9 2.1 2.0 3.8 
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25 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATlONS (continued) 

 
Mortality 

 
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 
Males Females 

Retiring Retiring in Retiring Retiring in 
today 20 years today 20 years 

 

The Ferns Primary Academy 21.4 24.0 24.0 26.6 
Hilton Academy 23.2 25.3 24.8 27.1 
Merlin Top Primary Academy 22.7 24.9 25.6 28.0 
Mount Pellon Infants & Junior 22.7 24.9 25.6 28.0 
Academy     
Ryecroft Primary Academy 22.7 24.9 25.6 28.0 
Kearsley Academy 21.4 24.0 24.0 26.6 
North Shore Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
Dyke House Sports & Technology 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
College     
Abbey Park Primary Academy 22.7 24.9 25.6 28.0 
Thomas Hepburn Community Academy 23.2 25.3 24.8 27.1 
The Orangefield Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
The Blyth Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
The Oak Tree Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
Norton Primary Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
Southmere Primary Academy 22.7 24.9 25.6 28.0 
Kirk Balk Academy 23.0 25.4 25.7 28.5 
Manor Academy 23.1 25.3 25.6 28.0 
Red House Academy 23.2 25.3 24.8 27.1 
Thorp Academy 23.2 25.3 24.8 27.1 
The Centre 23.2 25.3 24.8 27.1 



Northern Education Trust 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 31August 2016 

Page 
61 

 

 

 

 
25 

 
PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 
The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme: 

  

  
 

Fair value of assets 
  31 August 31 August 

  2016 2015 

  £'000 £'000 

 
 

Equities 
 

27,319 
 

20,829 

 Properties 2,758 1,952 

 Bonds 4,130 3,293 

 Cash 1,368 1,128 

 Other 940 932 

 TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS 36,515 .28,134 

 
 

Present value of scheme liabilities   

 - Funded (70,270) (41,670) 

  
DEFICIT IN THE SCHEME 

 
(33,755) 

 
(13,536) 

 
 

 
 

The actual return on scheme assets was £5,309k (2015: £173k). 

  

 
 

Amount recognised in the statement of fmancial activities   

  

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF 
 

2016 
 

2015 

 FINANCIAL  ACTIVITIES £'000 £'000 

 
 

Current service cost 
 

462 
 

620 

 Net interest cost 474 408 

  
Total operating charge 

 
936 

 
1,028 
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25 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBUGATIONS (continued) 
 

CHANGES IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFJT 

OBLIGATIONS: 

 
At 1 September 

Upon conversion 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Employee contributions 

Actuarialloss/(gain) 

Benefits paid 

Other 

Past service costs 
 

 
At 31 August 

20 16 2015 

£'000 £'000 

 
41,670 27,414 

11,567 

2,943 2,780 

1,600 1,332 

809 718 

23,479 (1,887) 

(328) (282) 

(13) (6) 

110 34 
 

 
70,270 41,670 

 

 
 
 
 

CHANGES IN THE PA IR VALUE OF THE ACADEMY'S SHARE 

OF SCHEME ASSETS 

 
At 1 September 

Upon conversion 

Return on plan assets 

Actuarial loss 

Employer contributions 

Employee contributions 

Benefits paid 

Administration charges 

2016 

£'000 

28,134 

1,126 

4,183 

2,595 

809 

(328) 

(4) 

2015 

£'000 

 
18,456 

6,875 

924 

(751) 

2,195 

718 

(282) 

(1) 
 
 

At 31 August 36,515 28,134 
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26 RELATED PARTIES 

 
The following related party transactions took place in the period of account. All transactions 

involving such organisations are conducted at anns length and in accordance with The Trust's 

fmancial regulations and normal procurement procedure-s. 

 
During the year the Trust received income of £4k (2015: £nil) from Locala Partnerships and with 

whom trustee Mark Sanders is the Chairman. At the year end there is a debtor balance of £4k. 

 
27 AGENCY  ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The trust administers the disbursement of the new discretionary support for learners, 16-19 

Bursary Funds, on behalf of the EFA. In the year it received £68k and disbursed £36k from the 

fund. An amount of £50k is included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is 

repayable to EFA. The trust retained a beneficial ,interest in individual transactions such that less 

than £lk has been recognised in income and expenditure in the statement of financial activities. 

 
28 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF FRS l 02 AND THE CHARITIES SORP 2015 

 
Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition to FRS 102 and SORP 2015 on total 

funds at the transition date and the comparative year end and net income/(expenditure) for the 

comparative period reported under previous UK GAAP and SORP 2005 are given below: 
 

RECONCILIATlON OF NET ASSETS ON 

TRANSITION TO FRS 102 
Charities 

SORP 
Pre-transition 

adjustments 
Charities 

SORP 
As at 31 August 2014 2005   (FRS 102) 

 £1000  £'000  £'000 

 

Fixed assets 
 

90,623  
 

(5,330)  
 

85,293 
Current assets 8,094    8,094 

 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
 

(3,485)    
 

{3,485) 

 

Net curren t assets 
 

4,609    
 

4,609 
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (13I)    (131) 

Net assets excluding pension liabiUty 95,101    89,771 
 

Pension liability 
 

(8,958)    
 

(8,958) 

Net assets including pension Uability 86,143    80,813 

 

Funds of the Academy 
     

Endowment fund 526    526 
Fixed asset fund 91,438  (5,330)  86,108 
General fund -restricted      
Pension reserve (8,958)    (8,958) 
Unrestricted funds 3,137    3,137 

Total funds 86,143    80,81"3 
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28 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF FRS 102 AND THE CHARlTIES SORP 2015 (continued) 

 
Pre-transition  adjustment- impairment  on land and building 

 
Under previous  UK GAAP and SORP 2005, the value of Grangefield School land and buildings 

was included in the fmancial statements at a cost of £5,507k. At 31 August 2014, plans were in 

place for a new school building to be built and donated to Northern Education Trust. As a result, 

the land and buildings shouJd have been impaired so that the remaining net book value was equal 

to the expected recoverable amount. This has been  accounted for as a pre-transition  adjustment. 

An irnpainnent of £5
1
330k has been recognised as a credit against the cost of land and buildings in 

the balance sheet. The effect on the SOFA was to include a debit of an equivalent amount within 
support costs as a result of this change. 

 

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME 
 

 
Notes 

31 August 

2015 

£'000 
 

Net income previously reported under UK GAAP 

 
Change in recognition ofLGPS interest cost A 

 

 
13,527 

(627) 
 
 

Net income under FRS l 02 12,900 
 

 
 
 

A CHANGE  IN RECOGNITION  OF LGPS INTEREST COST 

 
Under previous UK GAAP the trust recognised an expected return on defined benefit plan assets 

in expense. Under FRS 102 a net interest expenses, based on the net defined benefit liability using 

the discount rate applied to the defmed benefit obligation, is recognised in expense. There has 

been no change in the defined benefit liability at either 1 September 2014 or 31 August 2015. The 

effect of the change has been to increase the debit to expense by £627k and increase the credit in 

other recognised gains and losses in the SOFA by an equivalent amount. 



 

 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNT ANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY 

TO NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY 
 

 
 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 10 October 2016 and further to the 

requirements of the Education Funding Agency ('EPA ') as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 

2015/6, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure 

disbursed and income received by Norther Education Trust during  the period  1 September 2015  to 31 

August 2016 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the fmancial transaction s 

conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 
This report is made solely to Northern Education Trust and the EFA in accordance with the terms of our 

engagemen t letter dated 10 October 2016. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Northern Education Trust and the EFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other 

purpose . To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 

than the Northern Education Trust and the EFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have 

formed. 

 
Respective responsibilities of Northern Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting 

accountant 
 

The accounting officer is responsjble, under the requirements of Northern Education Trust's funding 

agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 4 July 2012 and the Academies Financial 

Handbook extant from 1 September 2015, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is 

applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 

which govern them. 

 
Our responsibilities for thls engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession 's ethlcal 

guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 

requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2015/6. We report to you  whether  anything has come 

to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed 

and income received during  the period 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have not been applied to 

purposes intended by Parliament or that the fmancial transactions do not conform to the authorities whlch 

govern them. 

 
Approach 

 
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2015/6 issued by the 

EFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 

 
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information 

and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative 

conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable 

assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 

aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. 

Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 

 
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety 

of the Academy Trust's income and expenditure. 

 
Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the 

controls, policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of 

authorities including high level financial control areas and areas assessed of presenting a higher risk of 

impropriety. We undertook detailed testing, based on our assessment of risk of material irregularity, where 

such controls, policies and procedures apply to classes of transactions. Thls work was integrated with our 

audit on the fmancial statements to the extent evidence from the conduct  of that audit supports  the 

·regularity conclusion , 



 

 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY 

TO NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY 
 

 
 

Conclusion 

 
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 

expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 has not 

been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the fmancial transactions do not conform to the 

authorities which govern them. 
 

 

 

 
RSM UK AUDIT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

2 Whitehall  Quay 

Leeds 

LSl 4HG 

 
Date 14 December 2016 


